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To the Members of CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of CASPIA Hotels Private Limited (the “Company™} which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and ioss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our gpinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended ¢n that date.

re

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stafements section of our report. YWe are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We beliave that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

EmphasisofMatter(s) :

We draw attention to Note 40 to the financial statements, which explains the management's assessment
of going concern assumption and financial impact on account of COVID-19 pandemic situation and its
assertion that based on best estimates made by it, the Company will continue as a going concern i.e.
continue its operations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise its assets, for the foreseeable
future.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

 Other information

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors' report, but does not include
the financiat statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
ferm of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Registered Ofice:
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BSR&Co LLP

independent Auditor's Report (Confinued)

CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5} of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisians of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were aperating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high levet of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregats,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financiat statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
far expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financiat statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. f we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are reguired to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify aur opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up te the date of our auditor's report. Howaver, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued;

CASPA Hotels Private Limited

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Centrat
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained alf the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from cur examinaticn of those books,

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income}, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinton, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 {aken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 184(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 32 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any fong-term confracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

\ér’

the Note 43(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries", with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

+ directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {"Ulimate Beneficiaries”) or
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Independent Auditor's Report {Continued)
CASPIA Hotels Privats Limited

+  provide any guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i} The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 43(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties {“Ultimate Beneficiaries™ or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i} and (i) above contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197{16) of the Act;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no remuneration has been
paid or payable by the Company to its directors during the current year and accordingly the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/\W-100022

Vikram Advani

Fartner

Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 091765
Date: 19 August 2022 ICAI UDIN:22091765AP{ZOF7497
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Reporf on the Financial Statemeants
of CASPIA Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Repori on Other Legal and Regidaiory
Reguirements’ section of ouwr report of even date)

(i) (a) (tA) The Company has maintained proper records shawing full particulars, including quantitative

(e

(i) ()

(b}

{iti)

(iv)

V)

ﬁ

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and eguipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of 3 years. In accordance with this programme, certain property,
plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification 15 reasconable having regard fo the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable property disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or intahgible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Refer Note 43(i) to the financial statements.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given fo us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from bank on the basis of security of current assets.
As informed to us and as per the terms of sanction letter of such limits, there are no reguirement
on the Company to sumbit quarterly returns or statements with such bank.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guaraniee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(ii}(a) to 3(iii){f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") are not applicable to the Company. The Company has
complied with section 186{1) of the Companies Act, 2013. According to the information and
explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 186 {except for sub-section (1) of the Section
186) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicabte to the Company since the Company is
engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facilities.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3{v) of the Order is not applicable.
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Aonexure A to the Independert Auditor's Report on the Financial Statemants
of CASPIA Hotels Private Limited for the vear onded 31 March 2022
{Continued)

(vi)

{vii) (a)

()

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise and Sales tax
during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax ('GST"), Value
Added Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory
dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate autharities, though there
have been slight delays in a few cases of Goods and Service Tax (GST", Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Professional Tax and Labour Welfare Fund.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Value Added Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable, except as mentioned below:

| .
Name of | Natureof | Amount Period to | Due date Date of Remark
the . the dues (Rs. in which the payment | s, if any
statute ‘000) amount
relates
The Provident 337 March 15  Aprl | Not yet : NA
Employee | Fund 2019 2019 paid
s’ (Additional
Provident liability due
Fund and | to
Miscellane | Supreme
ous Court)
Provisions | Refer Note
Act, 1952 | 32

According to the informaticn and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the recerds of the Company, statutory dues relating to Income-Tax which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of Amount (Rs. Period to Forum Remarks,
statute the dues in '000) which the where if any
amount dispute is
relates pending
Income Tax | Addition to | 9,171¥ FY 2015-16 Commission | NA
i Act, 1981 the taxable er of Income
income Tax
{Appeals)
Income Tax | Addition  to | 2,464* FY 2016-17 | Commission | NA
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Annexure A 1o the Independent Auditor's Repori on the Financial Statements

of CASPIA Hotels

Private Limied for the year anded 31 8arch 2022

{Continusd}

(viii)

{ix) (a)

Name of the Nature of Amount {Rs. Period to Forum Remarks,
statute the dues in ‘000) which the where ifany
amount dispute is
relates pending
Act, 1961 the taxable er of Income
income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax | Addition to | 5,682 FY 2017-18 Commission | NA
Act, 1861 the taxable er of Income
income Tax
{Appeals)

* Amount paid under protest Rs. 4,500
** Amount paid under protest Rs. 493

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing ar in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. As at 31 March 2022, the
Company also has interest free loan amounting o Rs. 2,496,935 thousands from the holding
company, repayable at the option of the Company and accordingly classified as "Other equity”.
As this loan is repayable at the option of the Company, there has been no default in repayament
thereof.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
aof the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given tc us by the
management, term [oans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures {as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022, Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

The Company does net hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associate or joint venture {as
defined under Companies Act, 2013} during the year ended 31 March 2022. Accordingly, clause
3{(b)(H) is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x){a) of the Crder is not applicakle.

According to the information and expianations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3{x}{b) of the Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A o the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of CASPIA Hotels Privato Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Continuad)

{xi) (a)

{b)

(c)

(xii)

(xili)

(xiv} {a)

()

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

{xwii)

fxwifi)

{xix)

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represenied to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3{xi} of the Order is nat applicable.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on infermation and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

Ve have considered the intermal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3{xvi){b}) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulaticns made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){c) of the Qrder is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group {as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2018 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 238,684 thousands in the current financial year
and Rs. 306,279 thousands in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been na resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3{xviii) of the Order is not applicable,

We draw attention to Note 40 to the financial statements which explains that the Company has
incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at
31 March 2022, Further, it explains the management's assessment of going concern
assumption and financial impact on account of COVID-19 pandemic situation and its assertion
that based on best estimates made by it, the Company will continue as a going concern |.e.
continue its operations and will be able to discharge its liahilities and realise its assets, for the
foreseeahle future.

On the basis of the above and according to the information and exptanations given to us, on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
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Annexure 4 o the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statemenis
of CASPIA Hotels Private LimBed for the year anded 317 March 2022
{Confinued)

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of cne year from the balance shest date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 30x)}b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/MW-100022

"

et ™

Vikram Advani
Partner

Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 091765
Date: 19 August 2022 ICAI UDIN:22091765APIZOF 7997
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Annexure B {0 the indapendent Auditor's Report on the financial statements
of CASPIA Hotels Private Limited for the vear endsed 31 March 2022

Report on the internat financial cantrols with reference o the aforesaid financial
staternents under Slause (i) of Sub-seciion 3 of Section 143 of the Act

{Referred to in paragraph 2(A){f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Reguirements’ section of our repost of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financia! statements of CASPIA Hotels
Private Limited ("the Company”} as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company far the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adeqguate internal financial controts with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial contrals were operating effectively as at
31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note an Audit of Internal Financial Controls Cver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note").

s and Board of Directors’ Responsibiities for Intemal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsihilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the crderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Audltor’s R'esp:é:r_is;ibi.iity'_ |

Our responsibility is to express an apinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference te
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial siatements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to cbtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and i such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures o obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal
financial contrals with reference fo financial statements and their operating eflectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a mailerial
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, inciuding the
assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due ta fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,

':Meanin.g of internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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Arnexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial staterments
of CASPIA MHolels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally acceptied accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that {1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabie detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
wiih generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3}
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's asseats that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibllity of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial contrals with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No..101248W/W-100022

Vikram Advani

Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 091765
Date: 19 August 2022 ICAH UDIN:22091765APIZOF7997
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CASPLA Holels Private Limited
Balanee Sheet as al 31 March 2022
(AN amoiats are D Indion Rupezs (000, unless ofhenvise stared)

Asg oot Asat
Nute 31 March 2022 M March 2024
ASSETS
MNon-curren! assefs
Property, plant aod equipnien 3 353,004 3,155,885
Tntangible assels 4 8,241 10,248
Financial assety
Others 5 10,288 12,678
Income tax asscts (ncl) ) 25,215 21,831
{thar non-current asscts B 40,905 40 8dé
Toilal non-current assets 3,040,283 3,241,484
Current assets
Inventories 2 1,872 1487
Financial assets
Frade wwceivalles 10 20,004 16,357
Cash and cash equivalents 1 406,083 BRI LT
(Hber bunk balances 12 23,331 5,446
Crhers 13 13,553 6,630
Oiber current assers 14 57,349 46,733
Total current assets 522,362 458,345
TOTAL ASSETS 3,662,645 3,699,831
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity skars capital 1% 180,000 130,060
Onher equity lo 500,387 A70,388
Total equity 680,387 1,039,383
Non-current liabilities
Financial liahilitics
Boerrowings 17 2,362,894 377,783
Trade payahles [7a
- total oulstandiog duss of toicig
cnterprises and stnalk enterprises B )
- toral purstimding cluzs of ereditors other
tlian micrn enterprises and smatl 41,234 -
crcrprises
Provisions 13 2074 2,287
Total non- current liabilities 2,606,202 2,380,070
Current liablilties
Financial lizhilities
Dorrowings 1% 215942 106,142
Trade payables pin
- total ouistanding dues of micro
enterprises and small cntcrpriscs 1363 343
- tatal LlJulstundmg ‘dues of crediteas other N7 117,162
thet micto enterprises and small
Others 21 14,682 20,147
Other current labiitics 22 25,744 21,143
Provisions 23 1217 LAl
Total curreni Uabilites 376,056 260,378
‘Total linbilities 1,982,258 2,648,448
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABTLITIES 3,662,645 31,690,833

The nates frem Matz |t Note 44 form an indegral parl of these linancial stulerents,
As per our report of cven dule ultuched

FurBSR & Co. LLP _For and on behaif of Roarl of Nirectors of
ChetrteradAernuntams ‘)\C LSP1A Hutels Private Limite

ICAT Finn Registration e L01248W/W- 100022

i g, :‘E

Vikram Advani Hima Goel

Feartmer e tor Congany Secretan
Membeiship Moo 0917403 DL 03363467 DIN: 0aR 13081 Wembership Mo.: A40683
Place: New Delld Place: Gurgram Place; Gurugram Piace: Gurugrm

Drales 19 Anpust 2022 Dhute: 19 Aupust 2022 Dale; 19 Aapust 2022 Dhate: 19 August 2022



CASPIA Hotels Privale Limiled
Statement of Protit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Ad ety are (n Dulicr Rupees (0004, nnfess offervise sintved)

For the year ended For the year ended
Nule 31 March 2022 31 Murch 2021
Tneome
Revenue from aperations 24 458,336 232360
Other income 25 1,301 3,311
Total income 459,637 235,580
FExpenses
Cost of materials consuned 26 30,703 32,889
Employes benelits expense by 96,669 34,151
Oither cxpenscs a0 267,383 §81,711
414,755 308,751
Profit/{Loss) before finance cost, depreciation, amortisation and tax 44,882 (73,171)
Finance costs 28 383,566 233,108
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 105,380 114,841
388,946 343,249
Loss hefore tax (344,064} {417,120}
Tax expense 7 - -
Lass for the year (344,064) (417,120}
Hher Comprehensive Iicome
ftems that wili not be reclossified to profit or loss ;
- Re-measwrement gain/{loss} on defined benefit ohligations 27 66 (42) 5
Other comprehensive incomef(loss), net af tax 66 (42} '
Total comprehensive loss for the year {343,998) {417,162)
Earnings per equity share 31
Nominal value of share INR 10 [previcus year INR 10]
Basic (19.11) (23.17)
Diluted (19.11) (2317
The notes from Note | to Mote 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per onr report of even date atrached
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accowmiamy GASPLA Hotels Private Limited
[CAL Firn Bepisieation Noo [01248WA%. 100022 LR "H
At AR \ / . Ve
Vikram Advani i %@ma Das——""c- Himu Gocl
Parmer Ditector Director Company Sceretary
denibership Mo 091765 DI 03563467 DBIMN: 06813081 Memboership Moo Ad068%
Place: New Delhi . Place: Gurugram Place: Gumgram Place: Gorugrem

Date: 19 August 2022 Mate; 19 Angost 2022 Date: 19 August 2022 Date: 19 Auguest 2022



CASPLA Hotels Private Limited
Srutement af Changes in Equity for the year ended 33 blarch 2022
(A cmrenneds ave w dnelien Rugreesy ), nlzsy athernrse streed)

a. Equlty share capitnl

Particulars Numiber of shares Amaunt
s al 31 March 2020 18,100,410 150,06
Chanpes in equily shars capital during the yeur - -
As at 31 March 2021 18,100,000 180,000
Changes in cquily shars capital during the yeur - -
Asat 31 March 2022 18,000,000 154,060
b. Qther equity {refer oefe 10)
Purticulurs Equlty compunent of Reserves and Sorplus Other comprehensive Tutal
Compannd finuncisl incame
- instrument Capilal Reserves Retained enrnings Re-messurement
gain/tloss) on defined
benelit wllipatioons
Balnnce as ot 31 Mareh 2020 2,385,462 366,634 (16020225 - 1,150,081
Prufiti{luss) for Lhe year L - CAIAPILH N .1 RN ° FALTEY)
Total comprehensive income - - (417,120 142y (417,162)
Transterted to reluined earnings - - (42) 42 -
Add: Loan lfom Holding Company - Recognized directly in other 145,466 - - - 148,464
coTity
Balance as at 3 Bnrch 2021 2530315 JE6, 634 (2.01%,184) - B79.385
Irofit{loss) for ke year - - (344,064} [£1:] (343.998)
Total comprehensive income - - {3, DG4} 117 {343,998)
Translemed ta refained earmings - - L1 [66) -
Movernent nf lown frem 1alding Company - Recogmised directky in - - - {35000
oihar equity
Palunce vs at 11 Klarch 2022 2,496,915 366 634 {2263, 182) - S, 387

The noles leom Mode | e Mote 44 form en inegeal pan oF these linancial slatements.

As pee wur epait ol 2ven dale atached

For B & 1L& Co. LLP
Charteved decownganis
1CA) Finn Reaistration Mo, FILZAEWA- 100023

i ,‘6
Rharraro- RGN e
Yikram Advani . e e 1 Hitan foe
Frrmner s 4 Drpector Company Secraary

Mehemhersdip Mo (91765 103563467 DEN: 068 L3081 Merakership No.: AJDERE

Flage: Mew Delli
Dater 19 Augusl 2022

Plage: {urugram
Dale; 19 Augusl HI22

Place; Gurugram
Dhte: 19 August 2022

Place; Gurugram
Dale: 19 Angusl 20022



CASFPLA Hotels Private Eitlted
Statetvent of Cash Tlows for the year ended 31 Mareh 2022
LA ooy e i frodian Bupeas OO0, s s aseeutie nmd)

Far the vexr ended
31 March 2022

Ko the yvear ended
3 March 2021

A Cosh flow Trenn omeruting el
Loss trelors (ax {344,06<4) (4171200
Adiustments:
Depreciation and amortisation 105,380 110,341
Trovision no Jonges required written back {E.2440
Finawec coats 243,560 233,108
Provision for bad and dowbrful debiz 59 -
Loss on foeeiin exchimee faeniition {net] 2821 -
Interest income w7 (2067
Goweimment e il §39
Operaling proRt before working capital chianges A8 1750430
[Increasc) { decrease in inventnrics (3821
[lne rewse) / decreuse in rade reeeivabley [h078Y
Mtnereayed / decrease i ather financial assets 13263
[locreased § decedase in other wisuts (. Tal5
escrewse ! {duerease] jon rade payubles 19,079 (100,001
Iax AMdeercise) in olhur K tics 4 581 (LA71
Inzrease  {dearease) ino provisions (1511 138
Creceease in ciher finaocial liabilitics (121 [1R3}
Cash generated! (nsed) by operitivns 71396 (143,271}
Encome txes (paid) S refiinded et {3.404) 12,0483
Neb cash provided! {used) by aperalliy sclivitis 68,992 (145,319}
B.  Cush Mow Mrom dnvesting activitics
Purchase ofpraperty, plant and cquipment and Eniangible ass<ts (1,801) -
Liunk depusils matured 364,743 i1, 148
Honk deposits made 14,10y {495, 7500
Intenese received 3.659 G6l3
fvet cash (used in) f provided by investing actlviies 17,527} 116,054
T, Cash Do Mrook Gowoacinge acllvitics
Mon-currcat borrer ings nvailed 403,200 <03 16%
Mon-curment barmowings repaid [ 16,8400 (R RN
Reeetved cquiry component of inferest free foans from Flolding Conmany - (BRI
Repaymient of equity crmprment of interest frec Tonns tron 1 Lalding Comamatiy {34, 0600y -
Currenl burmrwings ovailed ! {repaidh durinp (he year - net - {26473
Finance cosly paid [22] 233} 1123.335)
Netcosh {nsed tn) f provided hy financing achvities (26,870 3ok, ATH
Nelinoroase in cash and eeshe equivalents (A+B+C) 24,595 337,209
Cush and cush equivalents at the beginninge of the year IR 4d, 241
Coshoand cash equivalents o the end o the year 4, 153 381,490

Mates o cash fow starcmenl
Cnmpnnents of Casgh and cash equivalents

ths at
31 Mareh 2022

Asal
3 March 2021

Cagl on hand 3ol 3l

Balances with bazks on eurrent account ELLAE 293,313

Deposit aceounts {with original manricy of 3 months o less) | (s, 748 43,8592

406,081 3R1.498

I ¥ovement in fnuncial Babllides
Non-current borrowlngs Currerdd borrowings Tatal

Ason 1 Aprit 202F 2,550,158 142 1,490,300
L'ash flows dnet) 399,501 [LO0, 142} 265 359
Fmanee ensl expense 2163366 - 283,368
Finanee eost nuid {291,230 (201,232}
Lolerest income pn loin Junds 1173 - 3173
Current mutorities of Tomgs 1erm bommowings {21594 215.942 -

Asoon 31 March 2022 2569324 215,042 2,785,166
Ason | Apal 2020 2,005,213 1830 2,033,539
Cast Bows {nen) 374834 {28,073y F4,362
Einanece cost expensc 201808 2,300 233,10
Finance cost paid [126,085) {2,500 {128,155

Letlerest wcoute ol doau foeds 153 - 3645
Current matiities of long ferm bormowings . {98.239) G, 2Re -

As on 31 March 2021 2,390,158 T 142 2,430,304

fil. The Statement uf Cash Flaws hus beer prepared in seeordanse with the 'Indireet Method sz set oo in e Ind AS 7 on "Ssakemens of Casl Flows™.

The nates fmm Nete 1 Mnte 44 fom an integm] par of these finanzial stcmeets
As per uzr reporl of even date uttuche:d

ForBS H & Co LLP

Chartered deeomtanty

IC4 Firrn Rgisiration M.z 1012435/ W- 100022
L1

\AQWE

Hima Gael
Commanv Secretary
Mombership Mo,; A40688

¥ikrar Advani
Farlner
hembrrship Mo,: 41763 363467

LM DRE1S0EL

Phuze: Mew Delhi Elnec: Cinmpeam Edace: Gurugram
[dake; 19 August 2022 [Fare: 19 Agmat 2022 b 19 Ang

Prace: Churnapram
2023 Diate: 19 Angost 2022




CASPIA Hatels Private Limited
Notes to the financial siatements for the yvear ended 31T March 2022

(A amounts are in Indian Rupees (000}, unless otherwise stated)

1.1

1.2

ii)

Corporate information

Caspia Hotels Private Limited ('the Company') is a Company domiciled in Iudia. The Company was
incorporated in India on 22 July 2005 as per the provisions of Indian Companies Act and is litnited by
shares,

The Company is a hotel development and investment Company with focus on operating internationally
branded hotels across key cities in the Indian sub-continent.

Presently, the Company has three hotels under it (Renaissance, Ahmedabad; Fairfield by Marriott,
Coimbatore and Four Points by Sheraton, Vizag) which are operational,

Basis of preparation

. Statement of Compliance

These financial stalemenis have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounling Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act’) and other relevant provisions ol the Act.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 19 August
2{22.

Funclional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest thonsands, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

[tems Measurement Basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair Value

Also refer note 40 for going concern basis of accounting nsed by the management.

Significant accounting judgments estimates and assumptions.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenscs and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about
the assumptions and cstimates could result in oulcomes that may require material adjustment to the
carrying value of assets or liabilities affeeted in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing hasis, Revisions to accounting
estiniates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future pcriods
affected.

The following arc the significant areay of estimalion uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant cffect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements:

Useful lives, recoverable amounts and impairment of property, plant and equipment

The estimated uscful fives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment are based on estimates
and assumptions regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash flows, obsolescence, demand,
competition, known technological advances. The company reviews the useful lives and recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting date.

Employee benelil ubligations
Employee benefit obligations (gratuity and compensated absenees obligation) are determined using actuarial
valuations, which involve’é:de_terminaticm of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due




CASPILA [lotels Private Limiled
Noies Lo the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 Marcit 2022

(At cmowmnts are in Indian Rupees (000, unless otherwise stated)

iii)

iv)

to the complexitics involved in the valuation and ils fong-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair valee measurement of financial instrunents

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance shest in respect of which quoted prices 1n
active markets are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required
in establishing fair values. Judgiments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments, Also, refer note 36 for further disclosures.

Itecognilion of Deferred Tax assets/liabilities

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and cstimmations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used. A deferred tax asset
is recognised for unused tax losses, deductible temporaly differences and MAT credit available, to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized,

Current and noen-current classification
The Company presents assets and labilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification,

An asset is classified as currentl when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

-it is expected to be reatized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operating
cycle.

- it is held primarily for the purpose ot being traded;

- it is expected w be realized within {2 months after the reporting daie; or

- it is cash or cash cquivalent unless il is restricled [rom being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months after the veporting date.

A lisbility is classified as current when it satisfics any of the following criteria:

- it is cxpeeted to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

-the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
setttement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilitics include current porlion of non-vurrent financial assets/liabilities respectively. All
other assets/ liabilities are classified as nou-current, Deferred tax assets and liabilities {(if any) are classified
as nomn-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cyvele

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realizalion in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for
the purpose of current/non-current classification of asscts and liabilitics.

Measurement of fairvalues

A nmumber of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair valucs, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an cstablished control framework
with respeet to the measurcment of Mair values. The finance team has overall responsibility for overseeing all
significant [air value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the Holding
Company's Chief financial officer.



CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{AH amounts are fn Indian Rupees ('000), unfess otherwise sialed)

1)

the remaining uscful life. . -~

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments, 1f third party
information is used to measure fair valucs then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from
the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS,

_inclading the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a lability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorized into differcnt levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valvuation techniques as follows:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical agsets or liabilities.

» Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assct or liability,
etther directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived [rom prices).

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (vnohservable
mpats).
If the nputs vsed to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in ity entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred,

Further information about the assumplions made in measuring fair valuey is included in Note 36.

Summary of significant accounting policics
Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and cquipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less secumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impaitrment losses if any.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing
costs 1f capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended usc and cstimated costs of dismantling and rcmoving the item and restoring
the site on which il is located, Any trade discounty and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase

price.

If significant parts of an item of propelty, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and cquipment.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment 1s added to its book value
only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow Lo the
Company. All other expenses on cxisting property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair
and maintenance expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference betwecen the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and wre recognized in
the profit or loss when the assel is derecognized,

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is calcutated using the straight-line method {SLM) to allocate
their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimnated useful lives (determincd by the management based
an technical cstimates). The asscts’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriste,
at the end of each reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over




CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial siatements for ihe year ended 31 March 2022

(AL amownts are in Indian Rupees (0N}, unless otherwise stated)

2)

)]

Depreciation on addition/ {disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis L.e. from/ (up (v} the date on which the
asset is ready for use/ {disposed off).

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of ussels is as follows:

Asset Category* Tiseful 1.ife (years) | Useful life as per
Schedule I1

‘Building 1560 | &0
Computcrs and accessories 3-6 1 3-6

Plant and machinery 5-20 | 15
Fumniwre and fixtures 5-8 ' 8
Vehicles 8 8

Office equipment 5 5

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, has determined that
the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to usc these assels.
Hcnec, the uselul lives of few assets included in the above asget categories are different from the useful lives
as prescribed under Part C of Schedule [T of the Companies Act 2013,

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, an
intangible assct is carried al ity cost less accumnulated amoliisation and sccumulated impairment loss, if any.

Subscquent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benetits from the specific
asset to which it relates.

Amortisalion

Intangible assets of the Company represent computer sofiware and are amortized using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life (at present three to ten years) or the tenure of the respective software
license, whichever is lower. The ameortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at feast at
sach financial year ond. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous
estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecogaition of an intangible agset are measured as the difterence between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss when the
asset 15 derecognized.

Financial insiruments

Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are imitially recognised when they are originated. All other
finaneial assels and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

All [inancial instruments are initially recognised at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be rcecived
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction between markel participants at the
measurement date. The fair valuc of a finuncial instrurnent on initial recognition is generally its transaction
price {that is, the fair value of the consideration given or received). However, it there is a difference between
the transaction price and the fair value of financial instruments whaose fair value is based on a quoted price in
an active markct or a valuation icchnique thal uses only data from observable markets, the Company
recognises the dilference as a gain or loss at inception ("day 1 gain or loss”). In all other cases, the entire day
| gain or loss is deferred and recognised in the income statement aver the life of the transaction unlil the
transaction matures o is closed out.



CASPIA Hetels Private Limited
Notes to the financial siutements for the year ended 31 March 2022

fAH amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

fi.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost;

- FVOCT - debt investment,

- FVOI - equity investment; or

- FYTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified after their initial recognition, cxcept if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for nanaging financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it tneets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- the assct is held within a business model whose objective is Lo hold assels to collect contraclual cash flows;
and

- the contracmal terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash tlows that are solely
payments of principal and intercst on the principal amount outstanding,

A debt investment is measure at FVOUI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at 'VTPL.

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contracmal terins of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and intercst on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCT as described above arc micasured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assels. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirernents to be measured at amortised costor at FVOC]
as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would othcrwise
arisc,

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset 15 held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management, lor inslance the slaled policies and objectives for the portfolio, frequency, volume and timing of
sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for snch sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Financial assefs: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely puyments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, "principal’ is defined as the fair valuc of the financtal asset on inilial
recogaition, Tnterest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includcs assessing whether the financial asset containg
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not
meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, inciuding variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension featurcs;




CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
Nutes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(AN amounis ave in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stoted)

i,

Financial assers: Subsequent measurement aid gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
assets at including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at amartised cost using the

at amortised cost | effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest incomne, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under
at FVOCT the cffective inlerest method, foreign exchange gains and losscs and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in QOCI
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity These asscts arc subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
investments at recognised asincome in profitor loss unless the dividend clearly represents
VYOOI a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses

are recognised in OCT and are nol reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial Fabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilitics at FVTPL are measured al fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financisl liabilities are subseyuently measured at
amortised cost using the effective intercst method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derccognition is also recognised in profit or loss,

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transactien in which
substantially all of the tisks and rewards of ownership of the financial assct are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferrcd asscts, the transferred assets are not
derecognized.

Financial lichifities

The Company derecognises a financial Hability when its contractual obligations arc discharged or cancelled
or cXpire,

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash [ows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new Mnancial liability based on the medified
terms 15 recognised at Tair value. The difference betwecn the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liabitity with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.
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4)

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Caompany currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intcnds
either to scttle them on a nct basis or to realise the assel and seitle the liability simultaneousty.

Interest free loans

The Company has obtained interest free loan from its holding company. Such interest free loans are measured
at fair values determined using a preseni value technigue with inputs that include funire cash flows and
discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such loans. The
difference belween the transaction price and the fair value of such leans have been recognised as equity
component in the books of the Company. The loan component is subsequently measured at amortised costs
and interest expense is recognised using effective interest ratc method. On modification in the terms of such
loans wherein they became repayable at the option of the borrower resuliing in it becoming perpetual debt
such loans including accrued interest up to the date of modification have been treated as other equity,

Modificaiion of financial assets and Habilities

Financial assets:
IT the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified
asset arc substantially different. 1f the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash
flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial assct is
derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair valus.

If the cash flows of the modified assct carricd at amortized cost are notl substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial Liabifities:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its tenmns are modified, and the cash Nows of the
maodified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms
1s rccognised at fair value, The dilference berween the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
and the new financial Hability with modified terms is recognised in profit or Ioss,

Impairmenl

Tmpairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losscs on financial assets measured al amortised
cost,

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assels carried at amortised cost require
impairment to be recognised. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
delrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

lvidence that a financtal asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable dala;
-significanl Mnancial difficully of the borrower or issuer;
- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

-the restruciuring of a loan or advance by the Company on lerms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;
- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
following, which are measured as 12 month cxpected credit losses 1.e, bank balances for which creditrisk (i.e.
the risk of defanlt occurring over the expected lifs of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition.
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Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date {or a shorter period if the expected tife of the instrument
is less than 12 maonths).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit
asscssment and including forward-looking information,

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recoursc by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credir losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls {i.c. the differcnce between the cash flows duc to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).,

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the wade receivables and is adjusted for forward-leoking estimates. At every reporting
datc, the historical obscrved default rates are updaled and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

Presentation of ullowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.

Write-aff

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off {either partially or in full) to the extent that there
1s no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor
does nol have assels or sources of income that conld generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write- oft, Tlowever, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
aclivities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of Non- financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internal/external Factors, Animpairment loss 1s recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset
{or cash generating unit} exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the preater of the asset's
(or cash generating unit's) net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounied to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit).
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An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount, An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation er amoertisation, il no impairment
loss had been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise stock of food beverages (including liquer) and tobacco is carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all expenses incurred in bringing the inventory to their present
locaticn and condition and is determined on a first in first out ("IFIFO™) basis. Net realisable valuc 15 the
cstimated selling price in (he ordinary course of business, less estimaled costs of completion and the estimated
costs to make thesale.

Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i) the
Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (it) the grant/subsidy will be received.

Export Promotion Capital Goods schene
The grant or subsidy received to compensate the import cost of assets, subject to an export obligation is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in ratio of fulfilment of associated export obligations,

Service Exports from India scheme (SEIS)

The scheme entitles the Company to receive SEIS licenses basis the annual earnings in foreign currcney.
These licenses can be utilised by the Company ar sold in the market. The grant is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss on accrual basis at realizable value.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

[f the effect of the time value of money 15 materal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability, The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost, Provisions are
reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the currcnt best cstimates,

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liabilily is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occwrrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present chligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of rescurces
will be required to scttle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount cannat be estimated reliably.
The Company docs not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including cxchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by the Company
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition and/or
construction of thosc tangible fixed assels which necessarily take a substantial peviod of time to get ready for
their inlended use are capitalised. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in the period during which
active development is delayed due to interruption, other than temporary interruption. Other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expensc in the restatod consolidated Statemnent of Profitand Loss in the period in which
they are incurred.
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10) Employee benefits

{a) Shori-term employee benefits

(h)

()

11

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve montlis of receiving employee services are classificd as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-gratia, The
undiscounted amount of short-term cmployce benefils to be paid in exchange for employee services is
recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

Post-empluyment benefits

Defined contribution plan - Provident fund and Employee State Insurance

A defined contribution plan is a pust-empleyment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
eontributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employee state
insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthty contribations towards
these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the Profit or loss during the period
in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution already paid is less than the contribution
payable Lo the scheme [or service received before the balance sheet date, the deficit payable to the scheme is
recognized as a lizbility after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds
the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset
to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefil plun. The present value of obligations under such defined
benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent acluary using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of
employee bencfit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation {s measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
delermining the present valuc of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market yields on
grovernment securities as at the balunce sheel date, having maturity period approximating to the terms of
related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognized in the period in which they oceur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to profit or loss, Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
plan amendments or curtailinents are recoghized immediately in the profit or loss as past service cost.

Other long-term cmployee benefit obligations - Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in
future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated
absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service and are also not expecied to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the end
of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation
for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this
entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected
unil credit method. Re measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
cntitled in exchunge for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transter of control of the goods
ot service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Rooni revenue, sale of food and beverage and, recreation services

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenuc
comprises rooin revenue, sale of fuod and beverages, propelty management services, recreation and other



CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(AN amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise siated)

services relating to hotel operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services and sale of food
and beverages.

12) Recognition of dividend income, interest income o1 expense

Dividend income is recogniscd in profit or loss on the date on which the Compuany's tight (o receive payment
is established,

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The 'effective interest rate' iy the rate thal exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throngh
the expectled lile of the financial instruinent to:

- the pross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculaling inlerest income and expense, the effective intorest rate is applied to the gross canying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the ammtised cost of the liability. However, for
financial assets that have becomc credit-impaired subsequenl to inilial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no
longer credil-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross hasis.

13) Accounting for Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are ranslated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulling from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and Habilities denominated in foreign currencies at year cud
exchange rates are generally recognised in the profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit or loss,
within finance costs, All other loreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or loss on a net
basis.

14) Income Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjuslment lo the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax veflects
the bestestimate ofthetax amount expected to be paid orreceived afterconsidering theuncertainty, ifany, related
to income taxcs. [tis measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilitics arc offsct only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to vealise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred fax

Deferred lax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes, Deferred
tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised
for temporary dilferences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combimation and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.
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Deferved tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit
may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recogniscs a deferred tax
asset anly to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence
that suftficicnt taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred
tax assets - unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed al esch reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the
extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is scttled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date,

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover orsettle the carrying ainount of its assels and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if theee is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets and Company intend to settle curent tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or such tax assets and
liabilities will be realised simultangously.

15) Segment reporting

Operating segmenls are reporied in 2 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM]),

Identification of segments:

In accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating Segment, the oporating segments used to presenl segment
information are identified on the basis of information revicwed by the CODM to allocate resources to the
segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is a compaonent of the Company that engages
in business activitics from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that
relate to transactions with any of the Company's other components.

16) Earnings per share

Basic carnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or {oss for the period attributable to cquity sharsholders
by the weighled average number of sharcs outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period arc adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti -- dilutive,

17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, chegues on hand and shot-term, deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
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5 Non-current linaneisl asscts - Others Asal As at
31 March 2022 3 March 2021

{Linsecured considered good)

Bank deposits due to imature after t2 manths from the reporting date® 1472 1,381
Security deposits 4dls 11,097
10,888 12,678

* including intercst seerued on fixed deposits INR. 272 (3] March 202! - INR 209)

6 Income tax assets (net) Asal As at
3 March 2022 31 March 2021

Tz deducted at seurce 23,235 21,831
15,115 21,831
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Incame tax

A: The mejor components of income tax expense / {inconie) ave

Recopnised in profit or lpss
Current tax
IDeterred tax

Hecogaised in Olher compreliensive income
Re-measurement on defined benefit cbligations
Before tax

After tax

Becognised directly in oiher equity

Temporary differences atsing from interest free ioans received during e vear

Before tax
Tax impact
Adter tax

B. Reconciliotion of effective tux rate (lux expense and the aecounting profit multilpied by Company's domestie tax rate)

L.oss before tax

Tax uzging the Company’s domestic 1ax rate

Efiect ol

Maon recognition of deferred taxes on temporary differences
Won-deductible differences

Tifective tax rate

C. Deferred tax nsscis { linbilities

Deferred tax assets

Unibsorbed business lusses and depreciation
Loss allowance for doubtful debrs

Unpaid interest on lozn

Provision for employee benelits

Deferred tax linhilities

Property, plant and equipment, Capital work-in-propress and Intangible assets

MNet deferred tax asset/ {lizbilities}

Deterred tax assetd{liability} recongnised*

For the year ended

31 Meareh 2022

For the year ended
31 Marvh 2021

&6 {423

66 42)
- 146 46
- 146,466

Fur the year ended

For the year ended

For the year ended

For the year ended
1 March 2021

% Amount
{417,120
2517 {E(HL U89
(25,09 104,658
{0.08) 33)
0 ()]

Asat As at

31 March 2022 31 Maceh 2021

588479 489,753
1,300 1,164
28484 28484
2,055 2060
620,318 521,461
157,404 144,464
157,404 144,464
462,914 376,997

* Ay alyear end the Compury hus siprilicant unabsorbed deprecialion and carry forward business losses a3 per Tncome Tax Act, 19610 1o view of absetce of reasonable cortaingy

of sufficiens future taxable profits, defersed tax assers has been recopnised to the extent of deferred tax liabilities only,
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D. Maovement in lemporary dilferences
31 March 2022

Particulars RBalance as *uvement Recognised Recognised Balinee as at
af during 202i-22 | in equity doring in (HC1 duoring 31 Mareh 2022
1 April 2021-22 2021-22
1021
Deferred tax assety
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation 489,753 Lg.726 - - SEE 479
Unpuid Interest ol doan 24,4984 - - - 28,484
Provigion for dowrful debes l,16d 136 - - 1,300
Provizion for employes benedits 2,060 {53 - - 2,055
Delerred tax linbilities
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible 2ssets {144 464) {12,940} - - {157 404)
Total 376997 85,017 - - 462,914
T T "partieulars Balance as Movement Racopnised in Recognised in OCI Balance as nt
at during 2020-21 |eguity during 2020 during 2020-21 31 March 2021
1 April 2l
2020
Delerred tax assels
Unabsorbed | losses and depreciation 391,410 98,343 - - 489,753
Unpaicl Interest on loan 4,385 23,859 _ B 2% 481
[Provision for doutful debits L 477 (313) - - 1164
Provision for employee henefits |, 822 238 - - 2,060
Deferced {ax liabillties
Property, plant and equipment and Tntangible assets (127,215) (17,249 - - {1dd dod)
Tutul 272079 104,918 - - 376,597
E. 'Tax Losses carried forward
Tax lpsscs for which no defferd tax asset was rerognised with cxpiey date as follows
31 Mareh 2022
Amount Expiry Dute
Business loss 1,337 200223
Business loss 22418 2023-24
Business loss 42,314 2024-25
Business loss 263,470 2025-26
Business Toss 196,566 202627
Business luss 133,916 2037-2%
Business loss 210472 2028-29
Business loss 237 866 2029-30
Unubsorbed depreciation 1,229,114 Mever expire

Husiness toss
Bosiness lous
Dusiness loss
Business luss
Husiness loss
Dusiness loss
Husiness loss
Unabsorbed depreciation

31 March 2021

Amount

1,337

22418

42,314
263470

L 96,966
133,976
211,368
072,323

Expiry Date
202223
2023-24
2024.25
2025.26
H126-27
12728
2038-29

Never expire




CASPIA Blaels Private Limited
Notes to the finencial statements Tor the vear ended 31 darch 2022
{All amowaeg are in Mdinn Rupees000), tnless othervise statod)

8  Other non-current assets As At Agat
(Unseestred, considered goed) 31 ntarch 3 Marel
Prepaid exponscs 412 353
Capital advunees 35,300 35,300
Taxes paild under appeal {Refer nefe 32) 4,093 4093

40,205 4846
As at As at
9 inveniaries 31 March 31 March

welued af the fower of cost ondd net realisadle valee,
4

Fooul aned heverapes 1,872 1,487
1,872 1,487
1} Trade receivaldes As Bt A al
31 March 31 ¥March

Unsecured, considered good 20,0944 16,557
Unsiectred, vonsidered doubtful 5,164 4,625
25,258 21,182

Less : Allowanee for expecled credit loss 13,164} [d,625]
20,094 16,357

a) The Company's expasare to credil and currency risks, ond loss allowances related o drade receivables are disclosed in note 36
b} For teceivalles secured against bummowings, reler o note 17

Trade receivahle ageing sehedule

Asg at 31 March 2022

Outstanding lor lullewing perivds from the date of transaction
Particulars Less than 6|6 months 1-2 2-3 | Morethan 3 Total
menthy 1 year yenrs Yenrs yLaTS
{i} Undisputed Trude recceivables  considered goad 16,433 941 635 443 638 20,094
{ii} Undisputed Trade Reeeivahley  credic impaired - - 539 1,480 3043 5,164

As at 31 March 2021

Qutstanding for lollowing periods from the date of transaction

Less than 6|6 moniks { 1.2 2-3 | Morethan 3
months 1 year YEars YEars FEATS

(1) Undlisputed Trade recafvables — el pond 13,301 554 o] 1,579 154 16,557 ,

{if) Undispued Frade Recelvables — veedit impaited - - 1 480 3,088 56 4,625 :

Particulars Tolal




CASPIA Huotels Private Limited

Motes lo the financial sialemenis for the year eaded 31 March 2022

{ Al amounts sre in Indian Rugees; 000). unless othervise stated)

&

Crer non-current assels
(isacired, considered good;

Prepuid expenses

Capital advances
Taxcs paid under appea] (Refer nore 32)

Inventories
fuirdteel aaf the lover nf east and et realisable velue)

Food and beverages

Trade receivables

Unseeured, eonsidered good

Unsecurcdl, considercd deubtful

Less - Allowvanes for expueted credil loss

4] The Company's expaosure o credit and carmency risks, aod Joss aliowawes related 1o frade recaivables are disclosed in oote 36

b} For receivables secunsd aganst boowings, vefer o note 17

Trade recelvable ageing schedale

Asat 3E March 2022

Asar As at
31 March 31 Mareh
412 353
35,500 35,500
4,953 4,993
H1,9105 40,841
As at AS ar
A1 March 31 Murch
1,872 1,437
1,872 1487
As at As At
31 March 31 March
20,094 16,557
5,164 4,625
15,258 21,182
{3, 15d) (4,623)
20,094 16,557

Quistanding for Tuilewing perlods from the date of transaction
Particulars Less than 6|6 monthsy 1-2 2-1 Mnr.': Ih.:m 3 Total
months 1 year FYEATS YEArs Years
(i) Undisputed Trade reccivables — considered good 16,435 241 a34 442 | 638 20,094
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivabies — credit impaircd - - 530 1,440 3,143 5,164

Asat 31 March 2021

Dutstanding for following periods [rum Lhe dite of trausactlon
Particulars Less than 6|6 months 4 1-2 2-3 |Morethan 3 Totsl
manths 1 year VEIrS yuars YERTS
i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considersd good 13,301 554 969 £,579 154 16,557
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit itnpaired - - 1,480 3,080 56 4,615




CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
Nautes to the financizal statenients for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees{'000), unless otherwise stated)

11

Corrent financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

- in current accounis

- depozil with origina! maturity of less than 3 months
Cash on hand

* incleding intcrest acerued on Gxed deposits INRL 461 {31 Maceh 2021 - TNR 340)

Current financial assets - Other bank balances

Bank deposits with original matuity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months#

# including interest accrued on fixed deposits INR 333 (31 March 2021 - INR 340
# includes deposits under lien amoevnting ro [NR 23,226 (31 March 2021 - INR 3,446)

Current financial assets - Others
(Unsecired, considered good)

Seeurity deposits

Unbilletd revenue®

Government grant**

Other receivables

Bank deposits (due 1o mature within 12 months from the reporting date)#

# includes interest acerued on fixed deposits INE 328 [INR Nil)
# includes deposits under lien amounting to [NR 2,003 (31 Mar, 2021 - TNR Ml
* Net gdvance from customers of INR 5,425 (31 March 2027 - INR 4,325}

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

00,975 295,313
104,743 83,859

360 38
406,083 381,490

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

*4¥ During the year, the Company haz written off government grant amounting (o TNR 76 {31 March 2021 - INR 839,

{her currenl assels
{Unsecured, considered good)

Staff advance

Balance with statutory authoritics
Other advances

Prepaid expenses

Other receivables

23,331 5446
23,33 Syddé
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1,163 TS
5,876 4,623
1,216 126z
2,245 -
2,093 -
13,593 0,630
As at As at
31 March 2022 3 Mareh 2023
24 -
25,162 35,868
24,614 3,180
1,589 6,612
- 1,075
57,389 46,735




CASPIA Hatels Private Tamiled
Motes to the financiz! statements For the year ended 31 March 2022
(A amounts are in Indisn Ropees(0003, unluss olberwise slated)

11

12

13

14

Current financial assets - Cash and ¢ash equivalents

Balances with banks

- [n eurrent acealnls

- deposit with ariginal matrity of less than 3 months
Cash on hand

* including interest accrued on lixed deposits INR 461 (31 March 2021 - INR 340)

Current financial assets - Other hank halances

Bank deposits with enginal matuily of more than 3 moenths bul less thao 12 maaths?

# including interest acerned an fixed deposits TNR 333 (31 March 2021 - TNR 3403
# includes deposits under lien amounting to {NR 23,226 (31 March 2021 - INR 5,446}

Current financial assets -~ Others
tUnsecured considered good)

Seewrily deposils

Unbilled revenue*

Gavernment grapt**

Other receivables

Bank deposiés (due to mature within 12 months from the reporting datc)#

#ineludes interest acerued on Oxed deposits TNE 328 (INR Niby
# includes deposits under lien amounting ta TNR 2,093 (31 Mar, 2021 - INE Nil )
* Met advanes Tom custorners of INE 5,425 (3] March 2021 - INR 4,325)

Ag at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

300,975 205,313
104,748 85,359

160 318
406,083 381,490

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 Mayeh 2021

** During the year, the Company has written off government grant amounting to TNR 76 {31 March 2021 - INR 819),

Other current assets
fLUnsecured, considered good)

Staff advance

Balance with statutory authorities
Other advances

Propaid cxpenses

Other receivables

23,331 5,446
23,331 5,446
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1,163 713
5,878 4,623
1,216 1,292
2,245 -
2,093 -
13,593 6,630
Ag at As at
31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
24 -
25,162 35,868
24,614 3,180
7,589 6,612
- 1,075
57,389 46,735




CASFIA Hotels Private Limited
Motes to the financial stulements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees(*000), unless otherwise stated)

11

Current financial assely - Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

- [n curreat accounts

- deposit with otiginal raaturity of less than 3 months
Cash on hapd

* including interest accrued on fixed deposits INR 481 (31 March 2021 - INR 340

Current finsacial assets - Other bank balances

Bank deposits with original matuity of morc than 3 months but tess than 12 months#

# including interest accrucd on fixed deposits TNR 533 (31 March 2021 - INR 340)
# includes deposits under lien amounting to INR 23,226 (31 March 2021 - INR 5,446}

Current fimaneial nssets - Qthers
{Unsecured.considered good)

Security deposits

tnbilled revenue*

Government grant®*

Other reccivables

Bank deposity (tue to mature within 12 months from the reporting date)#

# inchudes interest accrued on fixed deposits TNK 328 (INR Nil)
# includes deposits under licn amounting to TNR 2,093 (31 Mar, 202t - TNR Nil )
* Met advanee from customers of INR $,425 (31 March 2021 - INR 4,325}

As at
AT Marck 2022

Ay at
31 March 2021

300,975 295313
104,748 #5859

360 318
404,083 351,490

As at
31 March 2§22

As at
31 March 2021

** During the year, the Company has written off government grant amounting to INR 76 (31 March 2021 — INR B39,

Other current assets
{Lnsecured, considered sond)

Staff advance

Balanec with sratutory authorilies
{Other advances

Prepaid expenses

(Hher receivables

23,331 5,446
23,331 5446
Ay at As at
31 Murch 20122 31 March 2021
1,163 715
6,576 4,623
1216 1,262
2,245 -
2,083 -
13,593 6,630
As at As at
31 March 2022 3 March 2021
24 -
25,162 15,868
24,614 3,180
7,589 6,612
- 1,075
57,389 46,7315




CASPLA Hetels Private Limited
[utes te the financial statenients for the year crded 31 March 20232
(A canperneents are ioe fucfiern Rrgpeay P8O, sonlers ot e stoted}

15 Eguniry share capleal

Authorised shaee capital
Loyneity shares of INR 10 each

[ssued, subseciled and Eully poid ap
Equity shares of [IR 10 cach

Asat As Al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Numher of shares Amaunt Numbee of shares Amonnt
A5,0G00L0D 35,000 35,000,000 350,000
35000000 35,000 35,1000 350,000
18.066,000 1 803, K} 15,0, D00 iA0,N00
18,000,000 130,000 LD, 150,000

1] Recaneiliation of the equity shares outstanding ot the beginntng and at the ¢nd of reperting year

Ad the beginning ol Lhe year
At the cad of the yvear

Iy Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equlty chores

Far the year caded
31 March 2022

Fur the year ended
31 March 2021

Number of shares Amount Mumber ol shares Amvunt
[EALCERDEE 1R0,00 18,000,000 ERD 000
13,000,000 _ iB0.B0N 18,000,000 180,000

‘The Company has only oae chiss ol equily shaves baving Lte par value of 1MR 10 per share, Each holder ol equity share is emtilled 40 sne vaie per shate. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend

as declared from Lo L b,

in the event of liguidation uf the Company. she halder oFsquity shares will be enlitled L re
prapacion 1o the nunder of equity sheres held by the slurehelders.

©) Shares held by holdinglubi holdiag ¥ undy ar thrir Jes! assaciates

MNume o shareholder
Equity shares

SANMHI Hutels Limitel (Hulding Company)*

d} Details of sharchelders hatdlng wace than 5% shares

MNume ol shurchulder
Equlty shares

SAMHT Hateks Timited {'Holding Company’)*

“Me. Ashish Jakbacouls halds | equity share a5 3 nominee shiretwlder.

A5 AT
31 Murch 2022
Number of shares Amount
15,000,000 15000
Number af shares % ol holding
18,000,000 oot

tve renaining wssels ol'the Company, aller distribution olall prelerential armatunis, The distribution wisl ke in

As AL
31 Mareh 2021
Number af shares Amonnt
L& 60,0040 1ar 400

Number of shares

18,000,000

% of holding

LO0%,

As per records of the Company, incheding its wegisler ol sharchalders! prembers and olber deelarstions received (rom shaveholders regarding bene feial imeres), 1he shave sharcholding represents botl

legal and henelicist awnership of shares.

&) Mo shares Tiee been allotted without payment of cash or by way of benous shares during the pediod af Lve years immedialely preceding the Balince Sheel dale,

Ey Details of shares held hy promaters

Asnt 31 March 2022

Nu, ul shares ut

1 . Ch duri he i, of 3 ¥ change dun
S.0 Fromoter i1z beginning of onge diring the MNo. of shares at the wt o Total Shares a ¢hange during
Name year el of the year the year
the vear
1 SAMHI Hotols 800G . L#,000,000 100% N chiange
Limited
As ar 31 March 2021
Promoler M. ofsbares at Change during the Mo, of sharcs ut the % change durt
S0 . L breginming of e o L ¢ %o of Total Sharex o chang i
Name yiar end ol the year the year
the year

1 SANSH] Hotels L& 000,000
ifed

- L&,000, 000

1044

Mo change



CAEPIA MNarcls Private Limited
“oaes ro the financlol statements FBr the year eded 31 Mareh 2022
il gtz are i Iuion Rpeey (00, maless otbeniise siaied)

15 Equity share enpital Asot As ut
31 Murch 2022 31 March 2021

Number of shares Ameunt Number of shures Amount

Authorised shore capital

Equity shares af TNTL 1) each _ 35,000,000 33,040 33,000,000 350,000
35,000, ) . 35,4000 LER T 330000

Issued, subseribed and fully paid up 0

Equity shares ol TsT 10 each 13, 000,000 150,000 1 5,000,000 180,000
18,000,000 180,000 1E,000,000 180,000

ab Reconelliatlan af the eqniry shares sutstanding at the beginming and at the end of repnrting year

For the year ended Far the year ended
31 Murch 2022 31 Magch 2021
Numbwr af shaves Arcunt Number of shares Amount
Al the beginping of the year . L B.000, 000 1 76,0010 1 %.000.000 150,000
At the end of the year 1R,000,004 180,000 18,000,060 ) 180,u0u0

b Rights, preferences and restrictiuns attaehed L equity shores

The Campany has anly ane glass ofequily shares having tie par velue al TNE 16 aer share, Tach habler W equily share is entitled Lo one vote per state. The equily shires are entithed o rereive dividend
as declared lrom inie to L.

In the: event of Haguidation of the Camgany, the habler uMequity shires will ke entitled o receive cesaining assels ol'the Coinpany, alter distribution of all preferencial amounts. The distsibutian will he in
praportion to the sumber of equity shires beld by the shareholiers.

€] Bhares held by holdingfultimate holding compnny sad! or their subsidiarles? asseciotey

As Ab As AL
ame of sharcholder 31 March 2022 31 blareh 2021
Equity shares MNumber ol shares Amonnt Number ol shores Amouni
SAMH] Hotels Limited {Holding £ ompany)* T4, QU 004} 186,000 [R-RiALN TS 180,000
dj Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares
Name ¢f sharcholder Number ol shares % of holding Number &l shares W of helding
Equiry sharcs
SAbEH] Hotels Limied (Hulding Company’)* 18,000,096 16t L£.000 900 100

*bdr. Aghish Jakhanwala hohls | eguity share 5 @ nominee shareholder,

As per Tacords ol lhe Company, including ils register of sharebolders/ members and other declarations received L shareholdes regarding henedial interest, 1he above shareholduy 1epresents hoth
legal and heneteial owneuship al shares,

&) Mo shares have been allatted without paymeat of cash or by sity 1l anus shares during the peravd nl five years immedialely preceding the Balance Shect date.

{1 Detalls of shares held by promoters

As Al 31 March 2022

No. of shares ot

: duri No. % ch
S.n0 Fromater the bepinning of Change during the No. of shares ai the %4 of Totul Shares "o chenge duving .
MNany the year year end of the your the year i

. SANL?:“[:;!&IS LR 010,000 _ L&, 000 £60) L% M change

s af 31 Mareh 2021
Ma. ol shares at . N . .
S0 Fromoler the beginning of Change durlng the Mo, of shares at the % ol Totat Shares % change during
- Name year vnd of the year the year

thie year

L SAMH] Hotels 18,000,000 . 18,000 000 100% Mo changs
Limit=d




CASPLA Horels Priviate Limired

Nutes ta the linuncial siaiements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al wensaeds oee in fndien: Rugees 9 aulosy odieosive sated;

15

Lquity shure capltal

Antherised share capiral
Equity shares of INR 10 each

Issucd, subseribed nnd fly puid up
Ciuily shares af INR. 14 each

Asat Ag at
31 Maorch 2022 31 Marek 2021
Number of shares Amount MNumber of shares Amaunt
. J_E\UUU.UUU 35,0411 15,000,000 350,000
35,001,060 RN 35,000,800 350,000
18,000,000 _ 150000 18,000,668 £ AN
L, 000,000 130,000 18,090,00_0_ . 180001

) Recanclliotion of the equity shares sutslunding at the beginning and ut the end ol reporting yonr

At the begltuing of e year
Al the enel of the year

For the year ended
31 dEarch 2022

For the year ended

31 tlareh H21

Numler ol shures Armaunt Number of shares Amaunt
e EDOOD0O LE0,000 1&,000,000 180,000
18,0060, 000 158,000 18,000,000 1E0, 000

b} Rights, preferences und restrictions nitached o cqnity shares

The Campury has anly one class ol equity sharzs having the par value of TNR 10 per shars, Each halder ol equily share is entilled de ans vole per share. The equily shares arc emtitled to receive dividend

az declared trom lims t tinte.

In Lhe evenl ol liguidatioe ul'the Company, the balder ol soquity shees will be entitled to receive renaining 2sscts of Lhe Lompany, alhizr distrbution ol'all prelecential amaunts, The diseribmion will be in
propeetion fe lhe nurher oL equity shares beld hy (he sharchelders,

¢} Shares held by heldingfult

o lding

Name of sharcholder
Eyuity sharey

SAMHI Hozels Limiled {Halding Company)*

d) Details ol sharehelders halding nre Lthan 5% shores

Name of shurchalder
Equity shares

SAMIH lolels Limdted ('Holding Comgpany'}=

¥ ands or their subsidiari

axsuciaios

As At
31 Murch 2022

Nuber of shurey

T840, 000

Number ol shares

1, 000,00

*3ir. Ashish Tskbanwala balils | cuity share 25 2 namdnce sharehobier,

Aidnount

180,000

%5 of holding

L)

Ag Al
31 lorch 2024
Numher af shares
L4, N0, 0
Number of shares %
| 8,000,000

Amuunt

L&0,000

of halding

100%:

A per records althe Company, including i register o7 sharchalders? mersbers and olhes declacations recsved om slucehulders regarding benaficial int2zest, e shuve sharcholding represents botk

Ieztal szl benefieial awnership alshares,

&1 Mo shiees hive been allolted withowt pavinent uleash ar by way ol bonus shares duting the perind of five years immediziely preceding the Balance Sheel dale.

13 Letails ol shiaces held by promoters

As ut 31 March 2022

o of shares ut

I : s during H ‘o, : ] ¢ G
S0 Prllunn r the beginning of Cliange during the Mo, ol shores et the % of Trtal Shares “ chunpe during
Name yoar vnd ol the year the yeur
the year
] S.-’\M! I[. 1atels 18,000,000 _ 18,0003, 1)) L0 Mo change
Limited
As ot 3 Mareh 2021
No, of shares at
o N J el ~n, B b Yo ¢l ing
S.no ln?mmer the beglnaing of Chonge dutring the . of shares ae the % of Total Shares % ehinge during
Namg year end of the year the year
the venr b
| SAMH Hotels 18,000,000 N 18,000,000 100% Mo change

Limnited




CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(AN ennearnts wre b fudionr Bnpees (O, wnlexs etherwise stated)

16 Other equity

Capital reserve
Retained camings
Equity component of interest Fee loan from halding company {met ol tax)

a) Capital Reserve
Balanes at the beginning of the year
Balanee at the end ef the year

Agat
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

366,634 366,634
(2,363,182} (2,019,184)
2,496,935 2,531,935
500,387 879,385

Ag at
31 March 2022

366,634

Asat
31 March 2021

366,034

366,634

366,034

This represents capital reserve on business combination being the difference betwsen purchase consideration and fair value of net assets/liabilities acquired.

B) Retained Earnings

Balanee at the beginning of the year

loss for Lhe year

Transferred from ather comprehensive income

Retained camnings represent the amount of accumutated profitsi(losses) of the Company.

¢) Other comprehensive income

Balanee at the beginning of the year

Remeasureinenl of defined benelit liabilily ¢ asset {net of lax)
Transferred to retained carnings

Remeasurements af defined benefit liability {asset) comprises actuarial gains and losses.
dy Equity eomponent of interest free loans from Helding Company
Halance at the beginning of the year

Add: Loan from Holding Company - Recognised directly in other equity
Less: Repayment of loan from Holding Company - Recognised directhy in other equity

(2,019,184 £1,602,022)
£3d4,064) 17,1200
66 (42)
(2,363,182) (2,019,184)
66 (42}

(66) 42
2,531,915 2,385,469
- 146,466

{35,0000) -

2,496,935 2,531,935

This represenis the equity component of the interest free loans received fram SAMHI Hutely 1imited, the Holding Company. Terms of unseeurcd loan from

Helding compaiy had been modilied w.e 30 Seplember 28 which are a3 balow:
- Lenan Lo he consitdered as perpetual debt

- NIL rate of Interest

- Repayable at the option of the borrower

As per the amended terms, sntire liability portion including interest oulstanding us on 30 Seplember 2018 has been transferred to other equity during the previous

year based an the principals of NI AS. The cormesponding delsmed tax impact on such leans has also been adjusted through other equity.

Movement of Interest free loans from Helding Company

Toral proceads
Less: Equity componant

Add: Lass ou repayicent of lasn b heliling company before maturivy
Less: Gain on modification of Anancia! liabiliby

Aald; Inkerest exponse acerciion

Closing balance of liability component

Cquity component
Less: Tax impact
Fanity camponent {net of tax)

As at As at
31 March 2422 31 March 2321

2,351,765 2,386,765

(2,632,423} (2,667 423)
{280,658) (280,658)
236,136 236,128
{214,119) (214,119}
258,641 258,641

2,632,423 2,667423
(135,488} (135,488

1,496,935 2,531,933




CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Marel: 2022
{All armonints ave du indian Rupees (000), wnless othenvise stated)

17

MNon-current financial liabilites - Borrowings

Temn loans from batk {sccured) (Refer s below)
Less: Interest accrued and due on borrowings (refer nute 213
Less: Current maturities of long-term horrawings {reler note 19

a) Terns 6f loan (rom banks:

[ ADFC Bank (Sanclion Amouni: INR 610,8{H0):

Term Taan from HDFC Hanlk is secured by an exclusive charge over

{i} Movable fixed assets of the hotel, {Four Paints By Sheratan, Visakhapatnarn)
{11y Current assets of the hatel

(i) lmmovable assets of the hote]

{iv) First exelusive part passu charges over Escrow account,

As ut
31 March 2022

As af
31 March 2021

2,785,166 2 488,447
(6,330) {12,375
(215,942) (98,289)
1,562,894 1,377,783

‘The loan carries interest rate of equivalent to 1 year MCLR + 135 bps which is 8,55% p.a. at the year end {31 March 2021 - 9.65% n.a)

The loan is repayable in 36 quarterly installments.

1. HDFC Bank secured working capital Term Loan {Sanction Amount: INR 245,600):

The loan carries interest rate of equivalent to 1 year MCLR + 25 bps which is 7.50% p.a. at the year end (31 March 2021 - 7.50%4), Principal moratorium

of 12 months. Thereatter, principal e berepaid in 48 monthly instalments.

The waorking capital terrn loan is secured by extension of second-ranking charge over existing securities provided for the term loan, Additional werking
term loan ECL(S 3.0 Rate of inlerest - 7.50% p.a. The term loan amount is repayable in 48 cqual quarterly instalments after 2 year of moratorium from

date of first disbursement i.e. 28th September 2021. It shall he payable at monthly intervals.

T, Standard Chartered Bank {Sanction Amaunt: INE 900,080
Term lean from Standard Chartered Bank is secuced by:
(i) First exclusive mortpage / cliarge on Hotel im Ahmedabad.

{ii) First exclusive charge / hypothecation on the movable fixed assets of the Hotel

(it} First exclusive charge on present and future receivables of the Hotel
{1v) Cash shortfall undertaking by the Holding Company
The loan is repaysble in 45 quarterly installments.




CASIP'IA Hotels Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the yoar ended 31 March 2022
fAll aemowents are in Indian Rupees (000, unless othenvise stated)

¥, Standard Chartered Bank secured worldng capital Term Loan (Sanction Amounc; INR 340,000):

The loan cartles interest rate of equivalent to 9.25% p.a. at the vear end (31 March 2021 - 9.25%) Principal moratoriumt of 12 reonths. Therealter, principal
Lo be tepand 1o 48 monlhly instalments,

Working capital Term Laoan is secured by:

(i1 Second charge on Hotel in Ahmedaliad.

{11y Second charge on the movable fixed assets of the Hatel

{1ii) Second charge on present and future receivables of the Hotel

Additional working term {oan ECLGS 3,0 Rate of interest - 2.25% p.a. The term loan amount is repayable in 48 equal quarterly instalments after 2 year of
moratorium Tom date of first dishursement i.e. 2860 idarch 2022, Tt shall be payable at monthly intervals.

Y. State Bank of India (SBI) (Sanction Amonnt: INE 545,300):

Term Lean from State Bank of [ndia is secured by:

{1). Firat eharge by the way of equitable murtgage on entire fixed assers of the project Hote! land Area & Hotel Building. {Fairdfields Hotel, Coimbalore)
(1i). First charge by the way of hyparhecation on the cntire moveable fixed assets of the

hotel.

(eif). First charge on all the monies lying in the designated account, all project revenues and jnsurance proceeds of the hotel.

{tv), First charge nver all the rights, titles, henefits, claims and demands of hoteower under project contracts.

{v). Pledge of shares to the extent of 30% ot the total paid up equity share capital of the company held by the Holding Corapany,

(i), Firat charge over the DBSRA maintained with the Rupec Lender

The loan carries interest rate of equivalent to | year MCLR ¢ 225 bps which is [5.05% p.a. at the year end (31 Macch 2021 - [0.85% p.a.}

The loan is repayable in 48 quarterly installments.

¥1. State Bank of India working capital Term Loan (Sanctien Amount: INR

The loan carries interest rate of cquivalent to 1% above Extemal Benehmark Linked Rate (EBLR) which is 7.93% poa. at the vear end (31 darch 2021 -
7.65%)

Frincipal moraterium of 12 months. Thereafter, principal m beecpaid in 48 monthly instakments.

The working capital term loan is secured by extension of second ranking charge over existing securities provided for the Term laan.

Additional working tenn loan CCLGS 1.0 Rate af interest - 7.95% p.a, The term loan amaunt is repayable in 48 equal quarterly instalinents after 2 year of
mardorium feom date of lirst dishursernent 1.e, 3rd Noversbier 2021, Tt shalt be payable al mouthly infervals,

b} The Company had availed mermatorium on principal and interest payments with refetence to RBI circular DOR.No. BP.BC. 47 21.04.048/2012-20 dated
27 March 2020 and DORNo.BP.BC.71/21.04.048/2019-20 dated 23 May 2020 for the period 1 March 2020 to 3t August 2020, Accortingly, principal
repayments falling due during the petiod | March 2020 to 31 August 2020 have been shifled across the board, wherever applicable, resulting in increasing

the loan tenure by 6 months, Further, interest has been capitalised in the loan value on cemain borrowings and it will be payable in proportion to ratio of the
ariginal principal repayments basis correspondence from the respective financial institution.

¢} The Company did not have any cantinuing defaults as on the balance sheet date in the repayment of loan and interest,
d) Information abatt the Company's exposura to interest rate, foreien currency and Houidity risks (s included in note 36,

¢} I'he Company dida't have any continuing defaults as on the balanee sheel date 1n the repayment of loans and interest.




CASPIA Haotels Private Limited
Wotes to the fimancial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2022
{All zmeunts are in fndian Rupees ('O00), unless otherwise smted)

iTa Noa-turrent financial Gabilities - Trade pavables As al As at
31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2421

Trade payables
- total cutsianding dues of micre enterpriscs and small enlerprises -
- todul eurstanding dues of creditars other then micro coterprizes and small enterprises 41,234 _
41,234 -

a) The Company's exposiures Wy enrrency and liquidiey dsks related o imude puyables is disclesed in note 36,

Trade payubles Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2022

Ouistunding lor following perlods Trom the date of fransaction
Particulars Accrued | Less than 1-2 23 Mare than 3 Total
Expenses| 1 year FEArS YEATS YEurs
[ i) MEME - - - - . -
[ 1y (biers - 32,509 3,725 - - 41,234

Asat 31 March 2021

Qutstanding for Nolluwing periods from the date of transaction

Farticulars Acorged | Less than 1-2 21 More than 3
Expenses| 1 year years years Years

Tutal

{ 1) MSME - - - - -
{ 1i) Qthers - - - - - _




CASFLA Hotels Private Llmited
Motes to the Ananclat stalements For the yenr ended 31 dlarch 2022
(AN aonsenls we i Doalian Rupees SO00), wiless slberwise staledt

11

1z

23

Mon cutrent Pravislons

Frinision for cogpluree benefits
Grutuily [Refer cole 37}
Compensuled zbsences (Reler nole 27)

Current financial liabilitics - Borrowings

Loan repayable ar demand
Cash credit and everdrall Reilities friom banks (sscezed)
Curf2nt maturities of long-term borowings (refer note 17

Terms of Cash eredit and overdraft facillties from banks
The Comprny ha.

amaunt tilised, ard is repayahle on demand.

The secunty for Lhis facility i same a5 1em loan from HRTC Bank mentivnzd in Mees |7,

As ut As at
3[ March 31 March 2021
1,235 1431
839 il
20174 1,287
Asaot As at
31 March 31 Muwch 2021
21T
215,942

siledd hank averdrall faeility from HDFC Bank Lid. al an interest eare of 8.65% pa (31 Mareh 2021 - 9.63%3 (1 wear MCLE plus 125bps), computed oo mondbly besis on the actual

Srovistun for enlplapee heuefits
Gratuity {refer nole 271
Cotnpensaled absences (refer cote 27)

31 March

Currynt financial llabliitles - Trade poyables As ot As ut
31 March 31 March 2021
Trade payahles
- total ontstanding dlues af micra enlerprises and small enferprises 1,368 543
- total putstending dues af creditars eilier than inicro enterprises and small enterprises 17,101 117,162
118,471 111,705
a) Refer Mate 3% for Disclosures under hicra, Small and Medium Frlerprises Develapmenl Act, 2006 {MSMED)
b} Beler Note 35 for dues to relaled parlies
) The Company’s exposure 1o currency und Hguidily risks refaled 1o trade payables is disclased Dy note 36
Trade puyabbes Apelny Sceledule
As ot 31 Murch 2021
it ding for fullowing pedads from the ilate of € i
Porticub T g Anre Lhe
orticulars Averued Less thun 1 12yenrs | 2.3 years Mure Lhan 3 Tota!
_ Eixpemses year Flurs
{ i) MSIME - 1,241 50 i - 1,368
(i) Dhers 27033 37,123 17,563 22,641 12,743 L7, 102
As ar M blarch 2021 _
Outstanding for follpwing peripds from the dutc of frunsaction
Farrleulars Acerued | Less than 1 12 years | 23 yeors ¥lore than 3 Tatal
Expunses yERr yoaTs
iy MaME - 466 7 - - Sd3
{ it} Others o _ o 22,463 58,304 22641 1,155 1 11,557 1i7,:62
Current Ouastelad liakilltics - Qthers As ar Asar
31 March 31 March 2021
Talerest acerued bul nat due on bormewings (refer note |7) 4,330 12,375
Employee relaied paysbies 5,301 4615
Payable for capiial asscts 0010 2,300
Payable t related parties (refer notz 35) - 237
securily Deposit reesived 541 -
14 662 20,147
Qther current linhilities Asnt Asat
31 March 31 March 2021
Advanee [fom custurmers 17,688 496
Sratulary dues payable 06 12,667
25,744 21,163
Currend provisions Asar As ot

31 March 2621

685 17
532 504
1,217 1221




CASPIA Hotels Privam Limited
Notes to the Anancial scatements for e year ended 31 Mareh 1022
FAH ampunrs wre b Indian Rupees FINN0) wdess aiferwize seed)

i

I
W

-
b1

Teevenue fram speratigns

Sale af serviees

- Roam reveiue

- Food aml beverge revenus

- Revreutian und other servives

Contract Balancus
The canumet Liaki

For the year ended
31 Ml 2022

5494
101,338

L1304
A5H. 836

For the year enled
A1 Mareh 201

138,264
39,413
4502

232268

primacily relste to the advange consideration received from custoners for winieh revenus is recopoized whes the partbuance obligation s evay’ sevives delivered. Adwanes

cotlection is recoghizad when payeeant is receivad before the related perforzinee obliption is satisteed. This imclwdes advances received fram the customer towards roems/resizurantbanguets, Ravenue is
rreognised anee the pertormans e ablipation is met L.e, on reom staw sale of frad and beverge £ provision of banquet seivices.

The camract wisets primanly rlate to excess af revenue peer invpicing (e unhilled revenue),

Coniract liahilities
- Adlvanes from vostamers

Contract assels
- Unltlled revenue

Far the year euded
31 Mlareh 2012

17604

87

For the year ended

30 vEarch 2021

3.4%6

4623

Mote: Cansidering the nature of busingss of the Company, the shove contract liabilities ave generaily matetialized os revenue and coureact asses are converted inlo casivtrads receivables within the same

upmaing eycle.

Oher income

Interest income om financial asscls at amoitised cost
- bank deposits

Provisiondiabilities no Jonger required weinen back
Mizeellunecus incaine

Cost of materials consumed

Consumpdion of food and heverages
Inventary at the beginning of the vear
Add @ Purchases

Tiventony al the end af e year

Fmplayee benelits expenss

For the yenar ended
31 Mareh 2922

90
311
1,301

For the year ended
31 Morch 24022

1487
31,033
11,872}

For the yeur ended
31 Murch 2022

Fur the year ended
31 March 2021

2,067
|24

EEIT

For ahe year ended
3L tdarel M2

4815
29,561

{1487
32,880

For the yeor ented
31 March 2021

Salaries, waees and bpnus 74,032 BL722
Contribution to provident fund and ocher tindys qreler " balow) 5364 4,914
Compensaed absenecs {refier b below) 546 145
Civatwity capense (efer e below) 416 Rk
Sratt weltare expanses , 4,539
15,667 PRI
a, Defined Conleilition nlins T
The Campany oukes contzibulion:, detennived o5 a specified Luge of emjrloyes saluries. i respect of gqualifying employees wwards Provident Fund, Labour Weltfare Fund and Employees' State

biswranee, which ace delingd cocuwibution plans. The compny bas oo obligalions athee el to mahe e specilizd conliibotivus. The conbribulions are charged b profit or loss as ey aeerue, The amonnt
fou the yewr gated o BN 5364 (3] hlacch 2029 - INE 4.5938) Alse reler nate

recognised as an expenss lowards contribution te Provident Fund., Lebour Welfare Fung and Employees' Siate s

32,

h. Compensated ahsences
The Principal assumptions wsed in delermining the compensaced absences benefit abligetion are a3 given below:

Purticubars

Triscaunming rate (p.)
Fuhirz salary increase fpaah

Fuor the year ended
31 darch 2021
%4
497
.50

Fur e year coded
A1 Margh 2021
Y
4.53
5.50




CASPLA Hotels Private Limited

Motes o the financial statements Bey the year coded 31 Marel 2022
LA auraunds ave in Daaffen Bupees CODR), snviess otherce sated)

c. Defined Benefii Plun

Gratuity

The Corapuey hus v defined Sewefil grvicy plan, Bvery employe: who bas completed Give years or mora of s2rdies galsa gl.'aluily vn departure ot 15 days salavy (last deawe salay fioe each corpleted year of

sarvice. Tlee schienie is not fended,

The tollowing tables sumntarisa the components of wet beuelit eapense recapnised in e Slaternent af Profil and T.oss and amounts recogrized in the balanes sheet far the seid plan:

a) Expense recognlyed Jo Prolit or Luss
Parileuiars

Curreat secvice cost

[nbe st cast

Total expenses recognised in the Statement of proflt and loss

Iy Remeasureinents recognized divectly in uther carnprehensive ineame

Tarticulars

- changes in demoglaphic wsumplions
- ehanges iy finanefol assumptions

- chahges in caperience adjustmenls

Amount v ized in olher T sivi Ineomy

€] Change in present value af benefic o bigation

Particulars

Present value olabl:gation as at the bagiming of U year
Current service cost

Inrevesl cost

Acluartal (praiz)fluss on olilipulions

Benafits puid

Fresent value of obligation as at the end ol the year

d) Amounts recognizad in Balance sheet

Particulars

Presen value of the defined benefic abligarian at 1he end of the year

Fair value of plan assels at lhe end of 1he year
Funded status
Net Hability recognized in the Ralapce Sheet

Mon-cument
Cuonent

¢) The Principal assumptiens naed in deteymining the gratuity benefic bligatian are as given helaw

Purilculars

Diiscowting rate (p.a)
Sulary growth eate (poh

The discouat rate is ganarally based wpon e market vields svailable vo Govenemenl bonds ai the scepuntiog date with o reron that matehes thal of the liakiSities.
The salary gravwah rate takes azcount af inflatian, seniodty, pramation snd other relevant fictars o long term hasis,

For the yeat ended
31 dareh 2022

39
17
dig

For the year ended
H Marveh 2012
(26)
(19}
(21}

158)

For the year ended
A1 Mareh 7072

2,148
e
97
(66}
(518}
1926
Asat
31 March 2002
L92{
1,920
(1,920)
1,235
ks
As at
31 hlaach 2022
ke
1497
350

For the year ended
31 ntarvch 2021

419
a0
S04

Fur thw year ended
31 Mlareh 2021
(243
am
(42)

For (e year ended
31 Mareh 2021

1,783
4149
i
42
MELE
2,148
Asoat
31 Mareh 2021
214R
(2,148
(2.148)
1431
7
Asal
31 dlaveh 2021
%%
4.53
550




CASPIA Harels Privace Limineed
Mates to the finonchal statementy fur the year ended 3§ Marel 2022
{4l amounls ar2 in edian Ropees (000, unless afer s stated)

Asal A5 ot

Demngraphic assumprions 3t March 3022 31 March 2021
Huetiement Ape {y2ars) iR 54
Mortality Tadle 1AL (200 2-2014% LALLM (201320414}

altimate tatle wliinale table
Willilraval Bale ¥ Ya
Apes
Lpto 30 Yeasy 436363 49/65/68
From 31 tn -4 vears A363068 49/63/68
Abnve 44 yeary A963:68 496368

{f1 The Caompany best estimate of eapanss far the next year is INT 10 (31 March 20212 SR 484}

1. Sensidvity analysls

Reazonably possible changes at the repanting date 12 one oF the relevant actarial assunptions, halding silizr wssumplans eonggunt, would have affoeted the defined beneRt abligatlen by the amanunes shawn
aelow,

I Wlarch 2022 T S March 21
1
[ncrease Tecrease * Tnerease * Decrease = '
Digeounl rele §1.3% movament) (1 20 122 22
Furure salary groweh {0.5% nwvemant) 24 (1 a1 122]

Although the analysis does not take sceownt ol the flt disteibutian of cast Aows cxpected snder the plaw, iU does proide an approsimaion of e sensitivity o0 Mie 2sswnplioss shawn.
* Masltive amaunt reprasents incresge in provision
* Negative mmaunl represents deerease in provision

2y daurily prafile af delined benefit abbip:lion

As al Axal

Year 31 March 2322 31 Mareh 2021
Apnil 2021 - dMarch 2022 - G
April 2023 - Mareh 2033 655 03
Apiil 2021 - Marcl: 2024 473 3
Apel] 2024 - Muzck 2015 279 98
Apeil 2025 - Marck 2026 155 il
April 2026 - March 2027 2 n
April 2027 - March 2023 51 .
Aprtl 2027 anwards - n3

April 2028 onweards - M _
1920 M




CASPTA Haotels Private Limited

Naotes to the financial statementds for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees {'000Y, unless otherwise stated)

28

29

30

3

Finance cosls

Interest expenze

- Vehicle loan

- Termn loans *
Bank charges
{Other finance cost

#Net of interest income on fixed deposits of INR 3,173 (31 March 2021 - INR 3,645)

Depreciation and antortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and eyuipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Orther expenses

Repair and maintenance

- Building

- Muchinery

- Others

Advertisement and boginess promotion
Cable and satellite television
Commiggian

Communication expenses
Consumption of stores and supplies
Contractual labour

General administration expeinses
Bank charges

Hatel running expenses

Insurance

Legal and professional charges

Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation {aet)
Management and (ncentive fees
Miscellaneous expenses
Gaovermnent grant writien oft
Payment to audieors®

Power, Tuet and water

Provision for bad and deubtful debts
Rates and taxes

Rent axpenses

Training expenses

Travelling and conveyance cxpouses

*Paymeni to auditoes

As auditors
Statusrory audit
Reimbursement of expenses
(ther szivices

Earnings per share (EPS)

Net lass atributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of basie EPS
Woighted average number of equity shares for calculation of diluted EPS

Nentinal value of equity shave {INR)
Basic eaming per share (INR)
Diluted earning per share (INR)

For the year ended
3L March 2022

For the year coded
31 Mareh 2021

- 3
278,235 231 406
133 -
5,108 1,699
283,566 233,108

For tite year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

103,373 108,744
2,007 2,007
105,380 110,841

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Far the year ended
31 Mareh 2021

6,277 3,307
17,072 14,023
8,095 7,108
16,353 10,407
- 144
14,242 4,745
3415 2,953
28,206 12,377
16,195 1,737
3,309 1027
- 176
5416 1,847
2,863 3,194
43,250 40,867
2,921 -
12,707 5,044
191 3,948
76a 839
1,473 1,426
61,194 48354
539 -
12,241 13,199
60 a0
2,735 -
5,651 4,327
267,383 181,711
1,320 1,200
132 L2
21 20
1473 1,338

Foy the year ended
31 March 1022

(344,064)
18,000,000
18,000,000

10
(19.17)
{19.11)

For the year ended
31 March 2021

{417.120)
18,000,000
18,060,000

10
231N
{23.17)



CASPLA Hotels Private Limited
Noies (o the financial statements for the vear ended 31 Marelh 2022
fd i amonniy are dn fudian Rupees000), infess otfiervise stated)

32 Contingent liabilities and commitreents

KX]

10 the exteni nof grovided for)
Countingent liabilities

(1) The Company had received an assessnient ovder for financial year 2015-16 whereby an addition of INR 21,364 had been made to the total income of the
Campany. The Company had deposited TNR 4,500 against total demand of INR 9,071 and had filed an appeal before the Commissioner of nconie-tay
{Appeals} against the sald addition which is pending for disposal. Based on the merits of the arguments put forward, the Company is of the view that the
outeome will be w1 s favor and no provigion (s regueired 1o be created m the books.

{ii} The Company had received an assessment arder for financtal year 2016-17 whereby an addition of INR 9,515 had been made to the total income of the
Company. The Compuny had deposited INR 4933 against teta] deruand of INR 2,464 and had filed an appsul befine the Commissioner of Incomne-tax
{Appeals) against the said addition which is pending for disposal. Based on the merits of the avguments put forward, the Company is of the view that the
outcome will be in its favor and no provision is required to be created in the baoks,

{it1] In cuwrrent year, the company has received an assessment order for financial year 2017- 18 whereby an addition of INE 18,389 has been wade (o the todal
incorue af the company. The colupany bas filed an appeal betore the Commissionar of Income Tax {Appeals) against the said addition which is pending for
disposal. Based on the merits of the arguments put forward, the company is of the view that the outcome will be in its favor and no provision is required to be
created in books,

{iv} In current year, the company has received notice under section 148 of Incoms Tax Act, 1961 for assessment year 2016-17 on prounds of escaped
assessment. Based on the ments of the arguments pul forward, the company i of the view thal the outaoine will be inits Favor and oo provision s required Lo
be created in boals.

(¥} Tn Felwuary 2019, Supreme Cowt of Indiz in its judgment clanfied the applicability of allowances (hat should be considered o measure obligations under
Employces Provident Fund Act, 1952, The Company has been legatly advised thal there are interpretative challenges on the application of judgment
retraspectively and as such does nat consider there is any prahable obligations for past perinds.

Operating Segments

The Halding Campany's Chief Executive Officer has heen identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM'}, since he s responsible tor atl major
decisions w.r.t. the preparation and execution of business plan, prepaeation of budget, planning, alliance, merger, acquisition and cxpansion of any mew
facility, CODM has cxamined the company's pecformance from produet and geographic perspective and has identified a single business segment te,
"Developing and running of hatels”, hence an specific disclosures have been made,

A. 1oformation about produocts and services
Company primarily deals in one business namely “Developing and rmunning of hotels”, therefore product wise revenue diselosure is nat applicable.

B. Information about peographical areas
The Company provides services to customers in Tndia, Further, there are no assets located outside India.

C. Infarmation about major custemers {from external customers)
The Company does not derive revenue from one customer which would amount to 10 per cent or mare of the entity’s revenue,




CASILA Helels Private Limited
Moles o Fie financial statements foe the veor ended 3 March 222
(A amomnty ave in fndian Rupeest &N, imfess orernise stated)

34 Lease diselasures

The Company as raken oftice promises under eancellable apaeating Jease cgroemant. The total leaga cental recngmized as un expense during 1ke year ondes the Iease

oreemenl amouns Lo INE 6l {31 dacch 2023 - TR 604
35 Related parly disclosures

tah vame of related narties

Eetated party and natnre of related party relationship where control exista:

Mature of relationship

[Name of refated party

Holding Company

[SAMET Hotels Limited {formerky snowr as SAMHI Jatels Trivate Limited) |

Oher velated partles with whom transactions hava taken place:

Muture nf relaiinnship

MName of related parey

Feflow Subsidiary

SAMH] Hotels {Akmedabad) Private Limied

Fellvw Sulsidiary

Adgean Hotels Privale linsted

Fellgw iury

{b) Transzelions dorng the year;

SAMAT IV Rusiness Hotels Privide Limited

Particulars

Holding Company

Fellow subsidiary

31 KMarch 2022 31 March 2021

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

tdavement of lwan fram Holding Company Received {Directly
recoguised in Dther Equily

{35,000) 146,466

Retmbursement of

SAMIN Heels [ Abmedabad) Privare Limited

1,912

Arsim | Lrdels Private liositerd

632

2402

SAMHI Hotels Limited

SALHI IV Business Hate{s Privare Limited

12 N R

4232

Cost allocation

SAMI Hatels Linited

23977 24,131

In additien 1o leansactions abave,

- the Hubding Compuny hus previded ondertaking on belialt ot the Company in respert of term loan abtained from banks.
- there s o pledge aver shares hizld and owned by the holding company, uplo pereemage of the paid up stare copital os permissible vnder law, subject 10 maxinmm at 30%,

in respect of borrowings from banks,

(¢} Outstanding balances at the vear end

Particulars

Halding Compony

Fellaw subsidiary

34 March 2622 A1 March 2021

31 telarch 2022

A1 March 21

Equily component of Enterest (ree loans tnget of lax}

SAMHI Hotels Limited

2,496,935 2.5311,9135

Trade payables

SARMHT Hotels Limiied

233

Other cnrrent ahilities.

SAMHI IV Business Hatels Privace Limited

SAMIE Hotels Linived

Belmbubtxement of expenses

SAMHI Hotels [Ahnedabad) Privaze Limited

1115

4,336

|Arean Hocels Private limited

413

SAMHE Horels Limited

SANMHI [V Busincsz Hatels Privaie Limited

Oither currenl assets

SAMLN Horels Limited

20,490 -

SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private [imired

The tramsactions willy related pariies are made oo tenms eyuivalent to chose thuk prevail inann's keogth fromsclions.

satilemen: eecurs in cash,

Outsrunding balanees ar the ywar-end are unsecured and

Far the year galed 3 Blacck 2022 awd 3] Marvch 2021, the Campany has ool recorded wny impairmen; af ieceivables relaling o amounis owed by relled pantics, This

wasessmenl is onderlaken at eweh rzportiog perind.




CASTIA Hatels Private Limited
MNates to the Bnamelal srarements foe che year ended 31 March 2022
CAH awenngs are B fndien BupeesCiaii, waless otheriise stoled)

36 Linangial nstruments - Fair valwes aod rish managemont
A) Finanvizl instrunients by eatepory and fair value

Tlie belowe lalle sumnarizes e jadgements and estimares made i deleriing rlee i values af e Anancial instmments thal ace () recognised and measared ae fair value and {b) measired at wno dised
cusl amd Ror which fair valees e diselosed in the financial statements. To provide un mdleation abaut the reliability of the ieputs used o detennining G value, the Company has clssitied its finaueial
inslrumenls nlo the three levels preseribed under the accounting standard.

31 Murch 2023 . o
lLavel ol Hisrarchy Fair ¥aloe Through | Fabr Value Throngh Ammitised Cost
Profll and Loss Other Comprehensive
(FYTPL) Tncame (FYTOCT)
Financial assets
Man- Current o
Qlhers - - 10,558
Current o
Trade receivables o - 20,094
Cashoand cash rquivatent: - e 406,083
Oherbank balamees - - 24,331
Others - . 13,593
L'otal tinanelal ussels - - 473,089
Financll Bu!
Nao- Current B
Romowings ] o - - 2,563,894
Trade puyables - - 41,234
Current
Borrowings R - - 215,942
Trade prvables - - 118,471
Others o - - 14,682
{Total lal liahilites - - 2,953,203
31 March 2021 |
Level of Hierarchy Fair Value Through|  Fair Value Through Amartised Cost
Particulars Profit and Loss Other Camprelensive
{FYTPL) Lucome (FYTOCTY
Financial assets
NOn-current B
Others - - 12,678
Cuirenl e
Trade recaivaliles - - R L2
Cash and cash equivalents - - IR1AHY
Ovthee bunk hahinees - - o 5,446
70“.:[.5 S - - 6'630
N T . 122,801

Flnatecial Balillibey

MON-current

Berrowings 3 _— - - 2577783
Current

Borrowings ; - - 1053 142

Tradepayables - . 117,705

Othars - - 20,147
Tatal A il Tabilities e i - 1.615,777

Financial assets and Uabdfitles measured at fafr value - cecurrlng faiv value measuremeants

Ul fair vadus of teads cecaivables, cash wnd cash cquividents, ather bank babanees, other ewrent tinaneial asscty, trade payables, surrent umratvings and sther comant finaneial liahilitics appraximnate their
carylng anonts, due Lo Wed shart-1em mlure,

Interes rates an coc-cuorent bucoewdings (lerm foans fom banks} ane cquivident w the okt rate. Swch boreowings ure cantracicd at flaating rates and rates ace seset at shoe inbery
cirrying yabus oF such boreerings upproximates fir valee,

5, Avcordingly, the

Faig value ol bank deposils invluded i ether non-cucrent Cnanwial assels ara equivalent to theie carrying atuunt, us the intersst rate on Lthem is equivalent (o markel vale.
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(AN oy ave i Indian Rupees 0000, imfess atheraise suzed)

B) hleasurement af Tube values

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

Lewvel Iz Level | hicravchy includes financial tasonineals wessueed using guated prices. This includes listed squity instruments, traded buncs and mucual funds that have guated price. The fair valee of
ukbquity inslraments (including bondsy which wre waded in the stock exchanges is valued using e elesing price as al the reponing pecod

Levet 2: The faic value of fnancial instmments that are rot waded fu a0 active market {for cxample, traded botds, over-tie counter derivanives) s determined using valuation techniques which
maxirighe use of cbservable macket dala and rely 3 linls a5 possibie on enbity-apecific estimates, 1f &)l significant inpues required Ly Giir values an instrument e observible, the nstrument s inctuded in
lerel 2,

Tevel 3: ITane or moze of the sigeitieant inpats is not based on abservable marker data, the insteuesent is imetaded in level 3.
There have been ne waluations of finaneial instumes:s under Lovel 2 and Laved 3.

Thede have been na tranzters in either diceclion o the years ended 31 3acch 2022 and 31 March 202 1

The cumpany's pulicy is w0 recognise Wwanslers into and hanstees out ol T2 value hievarchy levels a5 al the end of the reporting pericd.

Yaluadien technlgque used ta deterniine fair vale

Specific valuation Lechnique nsed ta value financlal instroments inclade:
- the uge of quated market prices (MAV] for valuation of currenl investmerd,

) Financial risk manapgement

Risk manzgement franewsrk

Tha Company’s activities exposs it ta o variery al finincial risks: micket visk {imcloding forcign cxchange dsk and interest rate risk), cradit visk and Ligquidity risk.

The Holding Company’s Chiel Financial Officer under the divections of the board af diectors oplemenls fnancial risk managemsnd palicies across the Campany. The Campsny's risk

palicics are cstablished to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, 1a sct appropeiate risk limits and controls, o wwontlar risks und adberence L limils in ooder o minimize the
financial impacof such risks. The risk manggement policie; 2od syslems are reviewed regulacly to refbecl changes in market cendilions and the Company s aclivilies.

| Credit risk
Credit risk s the risk af finaneial loss ta the Company if 3 cuitomer or counterparty 1o a finaneial ingfument fails to me=t its camractual ubligaticns. The carrying anwunt of [naneial assets represenl
theximum credil risk exposure, The Company has credit policies in place wad e expasures to these credif risks are monitored on an engoing basis.

T cater to the eredit rigk for al witll banksMinaneial irsiti unly high ested bankstinstimations are accepied.

The Conuipany his piven securily deposits to Govermument depanmens and vendors. The Cempany does aot expect ony default fram these parties and accardingly the sk of default is negliaible or nil.

Lty zespect of eredit exp froms tmde reecival: bitled revenue, the Campany has palicies @y place to ensure that sulas an eredi without cetlateral are made principally ta travel ageses and
coiporatmmpanies with an approprise cradit histoey, Sales 0 othar customers ave madsa i cash o by eredit cards.

‘The Company establishes an aflowance for impahment Oedt repeesénts it expeacted credil losscs in respect of irade reccivabies. The £ uses a simplified approach fer the purpose of

camputationf expectad credit dass for trtwls ceceivables. Tn monitoring customer credit sk, cnstoners are grouped according o theie credic eharactenisties, including whelber they are an individual or
legal entinyheir peographical lacation. indusiry and exisience of provians finaneial diffieulties, it any.

Dwring the yeir, Hie Compary bas made no writeoffs of nads reeeivables. Farthe year endod  For the year ended
Reconcilintion of less wllawance provislun 31 March 2022 31 darch 2021

Cipening balunce 4,625 5869
Changes in loss allawance - . 1,244]
Clasing bafance 5,164 4,A25

The imgainment provisions for fnaecial asse1s disclosed above are based on assumpuioes about risk of defaull and expented loss rates, The company vses judeemant in roaking Uiess assumplions and
gelecting the inpuls to the bugainment caleubution, hased on the Campany’s pust histoey, sxisting markat conditions as well as frward looking estimates at the end of each reporing perid,

ii. Tiywidity rish
The Company’s appraach ro managiog Bquidity is b ensure, as far as possible, that it will kave sufficient liquidity ta meer its Kabilities when they are due, under bos normal and strassed cotdilions.

The Company's liquidity risk inzludes maivtaining sutficient cosh and macketatye securities and el flow Boim operating activities, Fhe Company seeks Lo bncrease Jncowsa Sam it existing
praperty oy maintaining bish quality standaeds resuliog bne higher accupaney and wefFs, whils rsdusing the related costs and by controlling operating sxpenzes.

Consequenly, e Company believes ily income, along wilh proceseds Fom finaneing aetivities will continwe to proside the necessay lunds le vaver ils shart Lenan and long teeen Rguidily needs,
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Suntes In the fpancial stafements for the year ended 31 March 2022
Al aumaants are in Diedivn Rupees O00), antess othorwise siemed)

(a] Expasure ro liquidity risk

Thet [llevwing arz the remaining cantractual malasities of fnancial Nabilities ac the reponing date. The amounts arc pross and sudiscounted med excluds estimared itlerest payeerls,

- Cuntructuul cash Moy
A1 March 2022 Carrying dnwuot Taiol -1 year 1-2 years -5 years  lore than 5
years

Non - derivative Arancial Eabilties

Man-current bomawings 2561394 2,572,294 . 260085 1,038,13) 1,376,948
MNon eurrent Trade Prynlles 41,234 41,234 - 38,062 1172 .
Current borrowings 115,942 215,942 2154942 - - -
Cunent Tude paynhlzs 113471 118,467 HEE Y - - -
Oeber current Limacial Lahifilie, 14,642 34,682 . 14,682 - -

1,953,223 2,962,619 348,081 305157 1,031,403 1,276,964

Contracrual cash Mows .
31 Blarch 2321 Carrying amosunt Latal -1 year 1-2 years 1-Syears  Mdove than 5
yedrs

Mon-derivative financial {in

Mon-onrrent borrowings LITTE) 2,385,200 - 25,022 1slold 1418204
Curnenl banuwingy ion, 142 100142 LML 142 - - -
Trade payables 117,705 P17, 75 117,705 - - -
Ohth=s cumvent fimsncix] liobilitics 20,148 o 2004 20,048 - - -

2,615,778 1,623,185 237,835 215,821 TSI, 1,418,264

{h) Fluancing arvangements
The company hid access to the Rithwing andmswn boowing taitities at the ond o the reporing peciod:

Ay at Asoal
31 arcch 2122 A1 March 2021
Floating rate
Cash evedil and overdrad facilities from bank 20,000 18,147
Term loae bom financial institulion - 300
20,000 18,447

ii. Market visk
Tl Company is expased to market risk primarily celating 1o the cisk of changes in manket prices, such a foreipn cxchange rates and inerest rtes, that will offect the Company's expense ot ihe value of
its haldimgs af financial instruments.

Currency rlsk
The Company’s expasure 10 Breigo curency risk s an necount of payables on account o expendinre in correacies otlee dran e fusclional ourccney of the Company.

Expasure 1a currency risk
The Company®s expasure o forciae conency msk st the end of the reparting period are as fallaws:

3 March 2022 31 Mlarch 2021
. USD in 1l ) USD in thousand
Financial labillties __
Trade payabies 1,098 . 6L
i 1,098 6oL
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
INTR dn ] i [NTR m k d
Financlal Babililles
Tradst payables 3,208 44,193
#3,208 44,193
Sensltivity analysis
A veasonably pussible sirengthening (wepkening) of the Tudinn Rupee against forcign currency al year end would bave affested the msasurement of fnascial instruments d inaled in foreign 2 i
anct affecled equily and profit ot loss by the amouns shown below, This analysis assomes thal all obher varables, in gaticular isterest mies, remain constant and ignores uny impact of farecast sales and |
purchages, |
{Praft) { foss Faquirty, net of tax !
{increase) / deerense !
Effectin INR . Strangthening Weakealng Strengthening Weal [ :
3 Alreh 2022
1% mavernent
usD 31 {832) 31 (832}
L ; {B32) 332 {8112}
{f'rofit]  loss Equity, net of tax

{Increase) £ decrease
IEEFlect im N3 . Strengihening ¥ eakeni Strenathening Weal
31 March 2821 ) i
1% mevement
LSD _ 442 142} 442 442
441 41 442 W4
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Interest rale rlsk

Interes: rate visk is the risk thar vhe faie value or fulure vash lows of a fnancial instrament will fuctuats because of changes in marked inlerese rades, Lhe Company's exposure 0 e risk ar clays

mirket inbepest pates celates primanly to ihe Company’s homowirgs obligations with loating interest rales,

‘Lhe Company eviluates the interest rases in the marlet oo @ regular basis o expless the opton of retinaneing of the bucrewings. Mareaver, the cormpany's cument borroswings wre lnked lo

floalinigtersst eates, theveby resulting in the adjustroents of i1s bovnawing costs i Lime with the oarket itte@sl.

Cxpasure to interest vase risk

The imevest rate profile of the Company™s interesi-b2aring finaneia! instournems s 25 fallows:

Currying amnunt

31 March 2022 31 hlarch
21
Flxed-rate instruments
Finandial ass5 - hank deposits 124,551 92,4835
129,551 92,485
Vasiable-rate instruments
Finaneial liabikities « Term loans Hom binks 1,785,166 288447
Cash credit and overdrfl facilities fom banks - 1,853
2,745,166 2,490,300
Tenial 2,914,717 2,583,183

Fair value sensleivity analysls for fixed-rate insorunents

The Campany daes nol aceount for agy fixed-rare financial assets or finansial Fabilides wn fair value Uheotgh profit of less, Therstors, a change in interest tates al the reporting date would not aftect prolit

o loss.

Rensitlvlny analysis for variable-rate Instrumenis

A reasomabily passible change of 100 hasis points in isterest rates ul the reporting dote wauld have increased (decreased) cquity and profil or Ioss by the smounts shown helow, This

atfulysis assumes that all alker variables, remain canstarl.

(Profic) f loss Equity, net af tax
{incrense) / decrease
100 by incriase 100 bp decroase 11 bp increase 100 hp.
decrease
31 Alareh 2022
Finaneial liabilities 17,132 (37,2333 27232 (27,23Y
27,232 (27,237} 27,237 (17,231
31 March 2021
Flnanial liabilities 20,834 120,834 20534 (2033
20,83 30,839 REXTINCY

{apital Management

The Company's policy is to mainlain a strong capital base so 48 to mainin irvester, crediter and market contidencs and te sustan fnwe develspment of the business.

‘Ihe Bowd ot directons seeks to maintein @ balance between che ligher retuus tat night be passilde wit Jigher levels of boecowing and e sdvantiuges and seeocity allorded by a soond capilal psiton,

Tha Company manitas capital usmng laan ta vatue (LTV] niettod te anaure that dhe e 1o vatug dass nal inczewse beyond 65% an any given reparting date ot o group leyel.

Ao part of its capital nanagetsent poticy Qe Camguny snsures camplianee with all covenunds and atker capital reguirements relaled to regulalory or conlraelual abligstions of malerial consequence to

e Company.
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jal sialemenis for the vear eoded 31 Merch 2022

A anrorees e fer ldien Rupeesy OU0L sidex: adieratse stateet

3% Disclasures under Mlcra, Smull und Medinm Enterprises Development aet, 2008 (MSMED

K}

3

=

Agat Asat
31 March 2022 31 Murch 2021

Trees to mlera dad small suppliers

The penuunts remaining unpaid 1o mbces acd small supplies as at the end af the yeae:

IMrineipal 1,348 hEA]
Interesl 13 -
The amaunts of Lhe payasents mads 1 micro and small applicrs heyond the appainted day during each aesoumning year. -

The amaun: of iterest padd under 1he act heyond the appainted day duing Uhe year - -

The: amnauns of interest dug sed payable for the period of delay in making payiuenl {which Tave heen piid but heyond the 9 -
appeinted day during the year) hat wilhoul adding the Lcerest specified under MSWED agr, 2008,

The wnount of interest acomued and remaining unpaid at the end of gach accounting yeur, and il -
The amouzt of further interest remaining dus awd pagable even in Lhe sueeceding ysars, untit such date when the inlerest - -

duet us above are actually paid o the small enterpeise fr the pupose of disall 418 a deductible expenditre under the
At

The mroagement b identitied enleiuises which luve provided goods and services o the Compeny and which qualify under the definition of micza and tnpd emterprises, as defingd wnder Micro,
Smiall and Medium Enlesprises Devalopreznl Act, 2006 (MSMED), Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amoumts payable 1o such enlerprises s at 31 March 2022 and 31 Marcl 2021 las
Deen made in the Bruansial stacements busedl oo intbnnation received and availzble with the Campany

Thring the: year, SAMHT Hatals Limited {the Tlalding Compaay} bas allocated expenses amounting TSR 23,977 (31 March 2021 - TR 24,131] 15 Cantpany’s share of projest cvpenses and ofher
cast incurmed.

Tmpact af COVID-1% pandemle tincluding going eoncern)

The Company is facing liquidity challeoges which have heen accentaated by uncertainry doe to COVID-19. The Company has incurred & net loss of [N 343,999 during the year erded 31 March
2022, As oo 31 March 2022, the Cotpany has heen largely funded by loans from banks and thers ace repayments of IR 255,942 (ineluding interest accrued thersond dus wilhin 12 months of the
balanee sheet dace. The company has cash and hank halanee of THR 415,727 with it as an 31 March 2022 which will assist for meetimg its shan tenm liabilities R next |2 maniba, The usiness of
the Campany was impacled during the yeer an account of COVID-1Y. During tew menaths of the yeor, the Company witnessed softer s due bt the subseq waves of COVID-12 and
consequent lockdowns it Severl states aotass the country.

With increasad vaccinations and consequent reduction i number of cases and zasing af all restrictinns, the Compang has witnessed a recovery. Starting fam Q3 FY 2022, the Company las
demonatracd improved business perlbomanes it ferms of Average Room Revanue {ARR) und Ocevpancy levels, ARR and Oceupaney levels in Q1 FY 2027 have renched TNR 4,167 and 71%. The
Company has continzed finaneial and epzratianal suppoc provided o the Conpany by SAMEI Hotels Limited ¢the halding compasy], has prajected tn gereratc profits trom its aparations and s
axnpacting necessary approvals basks application to Jenders under Eneryeiay Credit Line Guarintes Scheme (“ECLGE™.

The Campany hes assessed the pessible impoet of COVID-19 in preparution of Ihe Oneocial statemaals, Weluding b it Timited o its sssessment of liquidity and going cancem sssurption,
recowerahls valnes of its financial ard nan-fioancil assets and impact on revenues sed costs. Tle Company lus considev=il inlermal and extemal soavees of infarmation and has performed seasitivioe
analysis er the assemprions used and based on current estimntes, sapects 1o recaver the can ving anwurt of these msscts, The upact of COVID-19 eay be differzot from that cstimated as at the
dnte of appraval of thess financial staterments and the Company wili contume te clasely maniter uny material changes to funure ceonomis somditians,

Io wigw af the above, the management and ke Basl of Diteclors hefieve that the Company will be okl (o meet ol its contreevual abligations and Fabilitizs 15 and when they fall due in near foture
ard accordingky, these financial staterments have been preparad on 4 going concern basis.
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41 Mew standards and interpretaifons, not yet adopred

41

Revent prooouccements Midistry of Carpurate Affuirs (“MOA™) natifies now standard or ameadments ta the cxisting standards uader Companics {Tudian Accounting Saadords) Boles as

issuedom Lome Lo Lime. On 23 Jacch 2022, MCA amended 1he Companics tTudian accounting Slandards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable Gom Apcil tat, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 - Reforence to Conceptual Framework: The awendments speeify hat to qualify for recognition ns put of apolying the acqwsikon metbad, the identifialle asets acquired
ackiabilities assumed nust mece the definitions of assets and liabilites in the Conevpiual Framewors for Financial Keporting under lodian Acvounting Standards (Cotweplual Framewark) issced by
tibnstitaie of Chanerad Accountants ol ndia al the dequisition date, These changss de nol significantly change 1he requiraments of lud A% 103, Fle Canpauy does nof expecl the amendment 16
financial statements.

liamy impaet in §

Ird AS [6 - Proceeds before intended wser The wuendments cainly probilit an eetily Gane ded
itengroduced while the company is preparing Uie assed foc o
Ugnietiliaents ka have Loy ingeact in its recognilton al’ils progerdy, plant and

Ind A8 37 - Qoereus Conteaeds - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract: The snendments specity that the “east of fulfilling' u cortrat comiprises the "casts that relate divectly to the contiact’. Costs thal
relate direatly to o cowtreet can cither be incremanal costs of fultilling that cameer {examples wauld he direct laboor, materials) or ar allocation of other costs that relate diveetly 1o

ing from the sost of propery, plant and cguipment

i inits fi

amuons ezived from sefling
intended uxe. Instead, wnoantily wilk recognise such sales pragceds and related cost in profil o Joss. The Company does ol expeet

fultiliinpoteacts, The amendment is sssentially a clavification and the Company dacs not e¥pect the amendment ta have any significan: impact in its fnaneial starementa.

Tnd AS 109 - Annual [mpravements to Tnd A8 {2021); The smendment clacifics whi

Hrerecagmise a finarcial lishility. The Company docs not exprer the amendment to have any significant impact in ils Gaancis] stalements.

Ind AS 106 - Annual Improvements to Thd AS (2021): The amendments semove the illustiation of the reimbursement of leasshole impravements Ly the lessor in urder Lo reselve wry polential
confusion regarding the leeatrient ol Lemse incenlives dhat might ariss because of how lease incentives were desciibed wi that iliusteacions The Company duss not espect fhe smendisenl to hive
argretifeant intpaet i 45 financial slatemants.

Fees atn entity includes when it applies the 10 percent’ lest of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether

Raiju in times/% Numerator Dencminalar 31 March 1022 31 March 2021
B Analpsigand Its flements in times Current Asssis Current Liabilitivs 1.3% 1.76
b} Ceol-Equity Ratio Intimes Tanal Boarowings Todal equity 408 234
o) Debt Senvite Coverage Ratip ntimes Prafit before finance cost.  buterest Payments + Prineipal 0.0 0]
depreciation, amartisation  Repaymeants
acd tax
(d) Retwm on Equily Ratia it % Loss [ the year Avernge Toal equity 10.40} 11.33)
e} Inventory tomover ralin 0 times Cast of govds sald Averape Inventary NA NA
() Trade Reecivables turnower nito in ritnes Reventie fromaperotions Averags Trade Recohmbles 2501 1935
(2) Trade payadles umaver ratia in rimes Cast of materials corsumed Averoge Trade Payables 20 L.2g
+ {hher expenses
{leh Nat capital tamover ratia in times Revenue ffom operatiens  Average Curreast 2ssets - 266 17.41
Average Curceal labilities
(3) Nt prodit catio in% Laoss for the year Revanue [om oparations ST5.07% -179.58
(53 Rewurn on Capital employed in % Loss befare finanee casts  Tangible Met Woith + Totat -1 T8 -5 20
and taxes Tenrowings
(k) Return on investinent in % [mierest (Finance Incame]  Toveatment A A

Explanations to variance in Ratlos:

Del-Equity Ralin

Increase due 1o reductinn in ather equity as resull ol losses

Debt Servies {overape Kata

Rattia T jenprowved dus b snerease in profit hefne nanes cosl, depreciation, smetission and 1o

Trade Receivables warnover ralio

Net capital wesmover ralin

Irods pavables turneeeer Tatio _ Jneeeaged due 1o increage i business activity duringg the yeor

Dnerease i« due to neregse i revenwe [Foum apaalions

Flecrensed due to comparatively
aperations

higher increase in average working capital as compared to inerease in revesus from

Nal pratit rutio

g ayedl due Lo ipraventeul i business welivily during the yeer

Ratum an Capital enployed

Tngprereed retum is due b deereass in loss befare interast ard rases duriag e canent year o ccount af edss? in
husingss setivity during the vear

The Company has not presemted the llnwing ratios due to the reasons Ziven balow:

() Toventary uriyer cali

inze the Conzpany folds imventory of beveragss including liquor whose value is insignifizant compared ta tae taral assees

(b} Rt on Lyvestments: since the Commpauy invests surphus temparany fods in short Lerm bank deposits aud the leome generaled is nsigniffeant o tolal tutnevet
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43 Other statutory infermation
{i} The Company does nat have any Beoami praperty, where any procecding has been initiated ar pending against ihe Company for holding any Benami property.

(it} The Compaty do not have any transactions with companies stiuck off under section 248 of Companies Act 2013
{iii} The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet o be registered with Replsrrar of Companies (ROC) beyond tha siatatwy period,

{iv) The Company bave not traded or invested o Crypto cuneney or Virtua! Currency during the financia] yzar,

(¥} Mo funds have been advanced or Toaned or invested {eithee from borrowed lunds or share premivn or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company ko
or in any olher persanfs) o enlily(ies), iwcluding toreign entilies (“loteemediavies™) with the underatanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Inlecimediary shall lend or invest in pacty identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any
purty(s) (Funding Party) with the uaderstanding thar the Campany shall whether, divectly or indivectly lend or invest in other pesons or entltizs ldentified by or on
behalf of the Company {(“UHimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any suarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{vi) The Company has not entered into any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of aceounts that has been swirendered or disclosed as inconts
during lhe year i the tax assessmends under the Ineorme Tax Act, 19461 {such ag, search or swrvey or any other relevant provisions of the Tncone Tax Act, 1346}

iviil The Compary lus vot pragied uny loans or advances i the vature of loans 1o promoters, direclors, KiPs and the relaled parties {as defined under
Crnpenies Act, 2013) either severally or jointly with any other person that are repayable on demand or withou? specifying any terms or period of repayment

{wiii) The Company has used the barrowings flont banks for the specific purpose for which it was taken,

44 Change in ¢lassilication
{1} Pursuvant to amendiment in Schedals 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, effective fiom | April 2021, the Company has modified the classification of security
deposils fiom "Loans" o "Ouhers” in financizl assets and cument maturity of bomowings fom "Others” o "Borrowings” in corrent financial liabilites
Comparative amounts in the notes ta the Anancial statements were reclassitied for consistency.

Particulars As per earlier reparted Rovised classificatinn Ditterence
Assets '
Nan current asseds I
Financial asscts
|
|
i

T.0ans 11,097 - 11,0907
Others 1581 12,678 {11,097

Current liabilities
Finangial linkililjes
Horrawings 1,853 100,142 (98,2R0)
Ohers 118,436 20,147 98,289

{ii} The previous year's figures have been re-grouped/reciassiiad, where necessary ta conlonm to currenl yoar's classificalion.
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Fartner #Heetor Divector Company Secretary
Mambership Mo 091765 DIN: 3363467 DIN: 06813081 Membership No.: 440688
Place: New Delhi T'lace: Gurugram Placa: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
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